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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business type activities, each major fund, the fiduciary funds, and the aggregate remaining 
flmd information of the City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City) as of and for the year ended 
April 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements on pages 15 
through 67 as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These fmancial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the fmancial statements of the 
Monroe City Court or the Monroe City Marshal, which represent the aggregate discretely 
presented component units. Those fmancial statements were audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the fmancial statements, insofar as it 
relates to the amounts included in the component unit columns, is based on the reports of the 
other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards for fmancial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
fmancial statements axe free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, the fiduciary funds, and the aggregate remaining fimd 
information of the City as of April 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in confonnity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

1100 North 18tti Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel- (318)387-2672 • Fax: (318)322-8866 • Website; www.afuliservTcecpafirm.com 

MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN rNSTlTUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repoxt dated 
October 29, 2010 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over fmancial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction 
with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information on pages 4 through 
12 and pages 68 through 70 respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion 
on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying information listed 
as other supplemental information in the Table of Contents and the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic fmancial statements. This supplemental information is the responsibility of 
management of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion is fairly presented in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of passenger facihty charges on page 140 is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis as specified in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public 
Agencies^ issued by the Federal Aviation Admhiistration, and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

October 29,2010 
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City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30,2010 

As management of the City of Monroe (the City), we offer readers of the City of Monroe's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of 
Monroe for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010. It is designed to assist the reader in focusing on 
sigiuficant financial issues, identify changes in the city's fmancial position, and identify material 
deviations and individual fund issues or concerns. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model 
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Government issued June 2001. Certain comparative information between the current year and 
the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the City of Monroe exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year by $230.8 million {net assets). Of this amount, the $16.5 million {unrestricted net 
assets) represents the portion of net assets which is not invested in capital assets or otherwise 
restricted. 

• The government's total net assets increased by $7.2 million. 
• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Monroe's governmental fimds reported 

combined ending fiond balances of $94.0 million, an increase of $16.1 million in comparison 
with the prior year. Of this total-amount, $24.1 million is in unreserved fund balance. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, approximately $353,000 of the General Fund's fiand 
balance was reserved for inventories and prepaid items; and approximately $600,000 was 
designated for capital improvements. 

• The City of Monroe's total debt increased by approximately $22.3 million during the current 
fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Monroe's basic 
fmancial statements. The City of Monroe's basic financial statenaents comprise three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fimd fmancial statements, and 3) notes 
to the financial statements. This report also contairrs other supplementary information in addition 
to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Not only do the government-wide financial statements include the City itself which is the 
primary • government, but also it's component units, Monroe City Court and Monroe City 
Marshal. Although these component units are legally separate, their operational or financial 
relationship with the City makes the City financially accountable. 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Monroe's finances, in a manner 
similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents infonnation on all of the City of Monroe's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net assets may serve as a usefiil indicator of whether the financial position of the 
City of Monroe is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in fiiture fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the govermnent-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Monroe 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) 
from other fimctions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of 
Monroe include genera! government, pubhc safety, public works, economic development, health 
and welfare, and culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Monroe 
include an airport, public transportation system, civic center, zoo, livestock arena, water and 
sewer systems. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Monroe itself (known as 
the primary government), but also a legally separate City Court and a legally separate City 
Marshal for which the City of Monroe is financially accountable. Financial information for these 
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary 
government itself 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of 
Monroe, like other state and local governments, uses fimd accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Monroe can 
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
fimctions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide fmancial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

Because the focus of governmental fionds is more narrow than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermnental fimds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the City's near-
term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The City of Monroe maintains 80 individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fiind statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fimd balances for the General Fund, Capital 
Infi-astructure Special Revenue Fund, Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund, , Ahport Terminal, 
Gardner Denver Building Capital Projects Fimds, all of wliich are considered to be major funds. 
Data firom the other 74 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, 
hidividual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Monroe adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, and all Special 
Revenue funds. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the General Fund and 
the Capital Infrastructure Special Revenue Fund to demonstrate comphance with this budget. 

Eroprietaiy funds. The City of Monroe maintains two different types of proprietary funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. An internal service fiind is an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Monroe's various functions. 
Because the internal service fimd predominantiy benefits governmental rather than business-type 
fimctions, it has been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. Proprietary fimds provide the same type of information as the government-wide 
financial statements, only in more detail. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary fimds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of 
parties outside the City. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those fimds are not available to support the City of Monroe's 
own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary 
fimds. 

Notes to the tinancial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Monroe's 
compliance with budgets for its major funds. The combining statements for non-major 
governmental fimds axe presented immediately following the required supplementary 
information. 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's fmancial 
position. In the case of the City of Momoe, assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $231 
million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest amount of the City of Momoe's net assets ($144.8 million) reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Momoe uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the City of Monroe's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related 
debt, it should be noted that the resovirces needed to repay this debt must be provided firom other 
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabihties. 

City of Monroe's Net Assets 
April 30,2010 and 2009 

Assets 
Current and other assets $ 
Capital Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Current and other liabilities 
Long-tcnn liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Net Asset? 
Invested in capita] assets, 

net of debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets % 

1 

GovernmEntai 
Activities 

2010 

107,067,034 $ 

174.618^43 
281,685,277 

16,955,482 
181,970.062 
198,925,544 

74,445,453 
69.519,188 

(61,204,908) 
82,759,733 $ 

2009 

90,506.166 $ 
173.150,854 
263.657.020 

15,470.499 
161.035,807 
176,506.306 

105.375.467 
54,746.361 

(72.971,114) 
87,150,714 $ 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2010 

3.424,763 $ 
150.161,541 • 
153,586,304 

2,351,712 
3,185,690 
5,537.402 

70,387.930 

77,660,972 
148.048^902 $ 

2009 

2,089,689 $ 
14];923,I21 
144,012,610 

2.811,526 
3.324,070 
6,135.596 

74.332,022 

63,545,192 
137.877,214 $ 

Total 
2010 

110,491,797 % 
324.779.784 
435,271,581 

19,307,194 
185,155,752 
204,462,946 

144,833,383 
69,519,188 
16.456,064 

230,808,635 $ 

Z009 

92.595,855 
315.073,975 
407,669,830 

18,282.025 
164.359,877 
182,641,902 

179.707,489 
54.746,361 
(9,425.922) 

225,027.928 

The deficit of $61.2 million in unrestricted net assets in the governmental activities represents 
the accumulated results of all past yearns operations. The principal factors in the large 
unrestricted deficit are that the City has long term outstanding debt of approximately $182 
million as well as approximately $74.4 million invested in capital assets. Capital assets and long 
term debt have historically not been reported in governmental fimds, but under GASB 34 the 
reporting of these results in an unrestricted deficit in the governmental activities. 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

City of Monroe's Changes in Net Assets 
For the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Other taxes 
Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
Genera] government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
planning and urban dev. 

Economic development 

Interest on long term debt 
Intergovernmental 
Airport 
Transit 
Civic center 
Zoo 
Livestock: arena 
Water 
Sewer 

Total expenses 

Increase in net asssets 
before transfers 

Transfers 

Change in net assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 

$ 22,112,708 
5,734,666 

11,110,912 

8,742,774 
55,760,791 

907,167 
456,799 

104,825.817 

23,870,534 
33,344,579 
18,424,296 
3,746,494 
2,921,511._. 

347,982 

8,396,380 
16,630.521 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

107.682.297 

(2,856,480) 
(97.220) 

$ (2,953,700) 

2009 

$ 24.658,136 S 
3,419,740 
4,201,882 

8,343,836 
55,838,007 

955,224 
1,988,547 

100.405,372 

22.318,212 
32,752.653 
19,427.509 
4,064,672 

, -2,376,802 

1,035.353 

8,039,160 
8,745.511 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

98,759.872 

1,645,500 
(1,758,112) 

$ (112,612) : 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2010 

; 17,770,849 
1,695.247 

17,183,477 

1,961,546 

0.036,001) 
37,575,118 

~ 
-
-
-

-

-

-

-
2365,597 
4,574,730 
3,222.770 
1.547,009 

9.724 
7.058.381 
8,722,437 

27,500,648 

10.074,470 
97,220 

5 10,171,690 

2009 

$ 16,350.889 $ 
403,544 

11.693.265 

2,075,277 
-
-

141,232 
30,664,207 

-
-
-
-

• ' 

-

-

-
2,198.892 
4,212,198 
3.553,218 
1,552,173 

11.844 
7,620,004 
9,053,953 

28,202,282 

2,461,925 
1,758,112 

$ 4,220,037 $ 

Total 
2010 

39,883,557 S 
7,429,913 

28,294,389 

10,704.320 
55,760,791 

907,167 
(579,202] 

142,400.935 

23,870,534 
33,344,579 
18,424.296 
3,746,494 
2,921,511 

347,982 

8.396.380 
16,630,521 
2,365,597 
4,574,730 
3,222.770 
1,547,009 

9.724 
7.058,381 
8,722,437 

135,182,945 

7,217,990 
-

7,217,990 $ 

2009 

41,009,025 
3.823,284 

15.895,147 

10,419.113 
56,838,007 

955.224 
2.129,779 

131,069,579 

22,318,212 
32.752.653 
19.427.509 
4.064,672 
2,376.802 

1,035,353 

8,039,160 
8,745,511 
2.198,892 
4.212,198 
3,553,2J8 
1.552,173 

11,844 
7,620,004 
9.053,953 

126.962,154 

4,107,425 
-

4,107,425 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

Governmental Activities (continued) 

Expenses are classified by functions/programs. Public safety accounts for approximately $33.3 
million for fiscal year 2010. Other functions such as general government, public works, 
planning and urban development, culture and recreation and economic development totaled 
approximately $49.3 million. The remaining costs represent payments for debt service and 
intergovernmental expenses totaling approximately $25 million. 

The related program revenues for fiscal year 2010 directly related to these expenses totaled $38.9 
million, which resulted in net program expenses of $68.7 million. The remaining balance of 
expenses represents the cost to the taxpayers. The costs of governmental activities exceeding 
restricted state and federal grants are paid primarily from .the following sources: 

• Sales tax revenues are the largest and most significant source of revenue for the City of 
Monroe. It provides approximately $31.9 million of General Fund revenues. 

• Property taxes are the second largest revenue source to the City, generating approximately 
$8.3 million of General Fund revenues. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Monroe's net assets by 
approximately $10.1 million. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

• Airport increased the City's net assets by approximately $9.1 million. 

• Water Fund activities increased net assets by approximately $2.2 million. 

• Sewer Fund activities increased net assets by approximately $2.0 million. 

• Monroe Transit System activities decreased the City's net assets by approximately $1.7 
million. 

• All other business-type activities decreased net assets by approximately $1.5 million. 

Financial Analysb of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Monroe uses flmd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 

The focus of the City of Monroe's govermnental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the City of Monroe's fmancing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve 
as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the 
fiscal year. 



City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Monroe's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $94.0 million, an increase of $16.1 million in comparison 
with the prior year. Approximately 25.6 percent of this total amount ($24.1 million) constitutes 
unreserved fund balance. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been committed. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Monroe. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, fund balance of the General Fund was approximately $12.9 million of which 
approximately $353,000 is reserved for inventories and prepaid items, and approximately 
$600,000 is designated for capital improvements. 

The fund balance of the City of Monroe's General Fund increased by approximately $600,000 
during the current fiscal year. 

The special revenue fimds have a total flmd balance of $30.0 million, of which approximately 
$17.8 million is reserved for debt service related to the Capital Infrastructure Fund. 

The debt service funds have a total fund balance of $12.2 million, all of which is reserved for the 
payment of debt service. 

The capital project funds have a fund balance of approximately $38.7 milhon all of which is 
reserve4.foT capital improvements. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39, Chapter 9, Louisiana Local Government 
Budget Act (LSA- R.S 39:1301 et seq), the City of Momoe must adopt a budget for the General 
Fimd and all Special Revenue funds prior to April 30. The original budget for the City was 
adopted on April 14, 2009, and the fmal budget amendment was adopted on April 13, 2010. 

The total difference between the original General Fund budget and the fmal amended budget was 
an increase in appropriations of $2.1 million and an increase in anticipated revenues of 
approximately $2.3 million. The majority of the appropriation increase ($1.8 million) was due to 
increases in appropriations for Administration ($0.6 million), Capital ($0.5 million), Public 
Works ($0.4 million) and Fire ($0.4 milhon). 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Monroe's investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business type activities as of April 30, 2010, amounts to approximately $325 million (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system 
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges. 
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City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30,2010 

City of Monroe Capital Assets 
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 

April 30, 2010 and 2009 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and furniture 
Construction in progress 
Inirastructurc 
Zoo animals 

TotaJ 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Total Net Capital Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

2010 

S 19,489,882 
39,! 23,011 
25.564,477 
2.278.591 

157,095,580 
-

243,551,541 
(68.933.297) 

$ 174,618,244 

2009 

S 17,472,810 
34,172,260 
26,302,378 
16,894,856 

141.328,638 
-

236,170,952 
(63.020,098) 

5173.150.554 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2010 

$ 5.542,940 
34,528,260 
17.645,106 
23,733,369 

168.131,490 
92,648 

249.673,813 
(99.512,272) 

$150,161,541 

2009 

$ 5,542.940 
39,021,739 
18,211,971 
9,537,427 

165,725,995 
67.755 

238,107,827 
(96,184.706) 

$141,923,121 

Totals 
2010 

25,032,822 
73,651,271 
43,209,583 
26,011,960 

325,227,070 
92.648 

493,225,354 
(168.445,569) 

S 324,779.785 

2009 

23,015.750 
73,193.999 
44,514,349 
26.432,293 

307,054,633 
67,755 

474,278.779 
(159,204,804) 

$315,073,975 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• Construction of sewer and water projects at an approximately total cost of $6.6 million. 

• Expenditures for a variety of street construction projects totaled $5.8 million for the year. 

• Construction on general infrastructure and general capital asset projects of approximately 
$500,000. 

• Improvement projects at the airport totaled approximately $9.9 mOlion. 
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City of Monroe 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 

April 30, 2010 

City of Monroe Outstanding Debt 
April 30, 2010 and 2009 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

General Obligation Bonds 
Tax Increment Bonds 
Certificates of Indebtedness 
Sales Tax Bonds 
Utility Revenue Bonds 
Airport Revenue Bonds 
Refunding Bonds 
Claims and Judgments 
Capital Lease 
Notes Payable 
Compensated Absences 
Other Post-Employment 

Total 

2010 
S - $ 

)0J 85,000 
1.245,000 

47,635,000 
40,292,547 
18,940,000 
50,244,847 
7,828,227 
2,147,939 
1,718,818 
5,933,536 
5,0.52.605 

$ 191,223,519 $ 

2009 
170,000 

10.645,000 
1,525,000 

49,315,000 
35,325,884 

-
52,790.775 

7,303.139 
2,309,299 
2,299,953 
5,472,528 
1,622,652 

168,779,230 

2010 
S 

-
-
-

2,192,463 
-
-
-
-
-

993,228 
-

$ 3,185,691 

2009 
$ 

-
-
-

2,294,123 
-
-
-
-
-

1,029,948 
-

$ 3,324.071 

2010 
$ 

10,185,000 
1,245.000 

47,635,000 
42,485,010 
18,940,000 
50,244,847 

7,828,227 
2,147,939 
1,718,818 
6,926,764 
5.052,605 

S 194,409,210 

2009 
$ 170,000. 

10,645,000 
1,525,000 

49.315,000 
37,620,007 

.-
52,790,775 

7.303,139 
2,309.299 
2,299,953 
6,502,476 
1,622,652 

$ 172,103,301 

The City of Monroe's total debt increased by approximately $22.3 million (13%) during the 
current fiscal year. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

Although the City of Monroe has experienced some of the economic downturn this fiscal year 
with the decline in sales taxes, the region as a whole has weathered the worst of it with minor 
setbacks. No major businesses closed; but, the automobile manufacturer that plaimed to move in 
the old Guide plant has experienced some roadblocks in its startup efforts. The receipt of a 
federal loan is still in question. As we move into the new fiscal year, like many state and local 
governments, the City is facing challenges concerning the increased costs of the fire and police 
pensions. However, sales tax collections are aheady up 2%. The City aggressively seeks new 
businesses to locate here as well as encotirages existing businesses in efforts to expand. The new 
airport terminal is well under construction and there is excitement in the air about its opening. 
The City uses every opportunity to promote itself, including hosting the Miss Louisiana Pageant 
and a nationally-televised boxing event at the Civic Center Complex. 

Requests for Infonnation 

This fmancial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Monroe's finances 
for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the Director of Administration, The City of Monroe, 400 Lea Joyner Memorial 
Expressway, Monroe, LA, 71201. 
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Statement A 

CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Sta tem ent of Net Assets 
April 30,2010 

Primary Government 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables 
Internal balances 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses 
Bond issuance costs 
Capital assets, net 

TotaJ Assets 

LIABILrriES 
Accounts payables and atcnicd expenses 
Accrued payroll related liabilities 
Deferred rcveaues 
Due to other agencies 
Deposits due others 
Other current liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 
Noncurrent Liabilities 
Due within one year 
Dire in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NETASSflS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 
Debt service 
Capital 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

S 88,755,932 

9,013.637 
4,503,957 

175,349 
985;201 

3.632.958 
174,618,243 

281,685.277 

4,799,012 
1,124.727 

18,265 
41.965 

30,255 
1.687,801 

9.253.457 
181.970.062 

198.925.544 

74,445,453 

30,242,423 
39,276,765 

(61,204,908) 

$ 82.759,733 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 5,511.019 

1,972.128 
(4,503.957) 

350,000 
95.573 

150,161,541 

153,586,304 

676,191 
344 

266.228 

1,408,949 

3. J 85,690 

5.537,402 

70.387,930 

77,660.972 

$ 148,048.902 

Total 

S 94,266.951 

10,985,765 

525,349 
1.080,774 
3,632.958 

324,779.784 

435.271.581 

5,475,203 
1,125,071 

284,493 
41,965 

1,408.949 
30,255 

1,687,801 

9^53,457 
lS5.i55,752 

204,462,946 

144.833.383 

30,242,423 
39,276,765 
16,456.064 

$ 230,808,635 

Component 
Units 

S 1.552,703 
39,633 
67,313 

16,930 

189.478 

1,866,057 

11358 

3,699 
4,523 

19,590 

181,256 

1,665,211 

$ 1,846,467 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF MONROE 

Monroe Louiiiina 

StattTtvtnt of Activities 

For tbe Year Ended April 50. 2010 

Nel {Exptnta) Rcrcnuti and OunjM in Net AtjeU 

Vu n rt i oftifP ( o j n i n 1 

Trimxry goveniinent 

OtiveinKitnljl »aml>es 

Genenl BOvemmenl 

Public flfety 

PubBc worlu 

Collurc vt6 recralion 

PUnning ind urbin developmeol 

Economic deveJopmenl tnd i m r U n c t 

Debt wr^TCc iTrteiMt 
C»pil»l k a z nua t t l 
Judgmtna 

Intergovcmienta] expenditorK 

TolaJ govennmoiliJ jicljviiies 

Euwitn- type >cliviliw; 

Airpon 

Tramii 
Civic Cenlta-

Zoo 

Liveuock Arena 
WMcr 

S K W « 

Toil) buiineK-^ype jClivit ia 

Toul primuy govftmmtnt 

Component units 

CItyCoun 

Ci tyMuih iJ 

ToUl CDfoponcnl matt 

ExpeniB 

S 33,870.534 
33,M4.S79 

IS.«4,29S 

J.746.^W 

2.921.511 

347.982 
7,723.?S0 

I2J,9H 
5<B,<86 

16.630,531 

107,682.297 

2.36S,597 

4,574.730 
1,222,770 

1.547,009 

9.724 

7.DJ!.3B1 
6.122,436 

27.SO0.&47 

X 13S,1IJ.944 

5 234.348 

421,335 

7D2.673 

Ad Viloierp tax 
Sties U A 
O lher tuM 

Churgct for 
Service! 

S IS.8a4.9M 

348.626 
J,M7.07^ 

503.32(3 

645.985 

E2.733 

22.112,708 

I.581.90I 
614,68£ 

1.190,012 
320,1« 

5,B05 
8.660,784 

4.697.416 

17,770,849 

S 39.M1.557 

S 4C2,)61 

376.469 

778.630 

Iniwert «nd >ove«mNU ttrobju 
Giin (Lou) on sale of C4pila} S I U I E 
U)CT 00 Awnicmnierft Df proiecu 
MttceJlEKOui 
Trwiriefj 
SpeciJ ilemt 

Prognm Jlevenuei 

Operd l in i 

Cr»n i i & 

Cenfrlbuiienr 

J 8,853 
J,2«7,0« 

143.426 

41,750 

1.897,746 

356,827 

5.734,666 

1.695,247 

1,695.247 

I 7.429.913 

Irtwrinct proceed* 

Tou] gtOBrol rDvemtes and ctparde fine a a m 

dwxges in n€l ts t t t t 

N t l uset i - beporang ( u reslated, 

N«I aiieO - ending 

leoNot t 18) 

Capital Grant ! 

£ CantHbultsnf 

S 1,000,000 

239,469 

9.646,801 

9J,539 

133,103 

11,1)0,912 

9.945.505 
552,957 

642.833 

6 , 0 4 i . m 

17.183.477 

J 28,294.389 

PrimaTy Covcmmeni 

Covemmtnlnl 

Aclivities 

S (5,976.717) 

(29,469.420) 

(4,987,995) 

(3.109.879) 

(244.677) 

P1.S7S 

(7.723.980) 
(123.914) 

(541,486) 
(16.630.521) 

(68,724.011) 

S (68,724,011) 

8,742,774 
55,760.791 

907.167 
291J96 
J39J4) 

(387.358) 
113.520 
(97,220) 

lOO.OtO 

6S.770,311 

(2.953.700) 

15.713,433 

S 12,759,733 

BuJintSt-Typt 
Ac t l v l l i o 

S 9,161,816 

(1.711.B40) 
(1,333,688) 

(1.226,841) 
(3.91?) 

2.245,236 

2 .0n , l62 

9,148,926 

S 9.148,926 

1,961.546 

(1.036,001) 

97.220 

1,022,765 

10,171,691 

137,877,311 

S 148.048.902 

T o r . l 

5 (5.976.717) 

(29.469.420) 

(4,987,995) 

(3.109,879) 

(244.677) 

91,578 
(7.723,980) 

.(123,9)4) 

(548.486) 

(16.630.521) 

(68,724,01 0 

9,161,816 

(I.71!,840) 
£1.333,688) 
(1,226.841) 

P.919) 

2^45,236 
2,017,161 

9,148,926 

I C59,S7S.085) 

10.704.320 
55.760.791 

907.167 
2 9 U 9 6 

(696.760) 
PS7,358) 
) 13,520 

100,000 

66,793.076 

7,217.991 

223,590,644 

S 230,808,635 

Component 

UnlW 

S )27.>13 

(51.856) 

75,957 

4.726 

(51) 

38,106 

42,781 

118,738 

1.727,72? 

S 1,846,467 

17* note* to tfw financal oatememE we u\ irKegnJ pirt of thii itilomcrt. 
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Statement D 
C I T Y O F M O N I i O E 

Monroe , Louis iana 

Reconciliation of the Governmenta l Funds 

Balance Sheet to the S ta tement of Net Assets 

Apr i l 30 ,2010 

Fund balances - total governmental funds S 93,992.551 

Amounts reported for governmental activities are not fmancia] resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmentai funds 

Governmental capital assets 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Assets used in governmental activities that are not fmancial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 

Bond issuance costs 

S 239,867,640 
(67.788,068) 172,079,572 

3,632,959 

Some revenues were collected more than sixty days after 
year-end and, therefore, arc not available soon enough 
to pay for current-period expenditures. 

Deferred property taxes - General Fund 
Deferred property taxes - Airport Debt Service Fund 
Receivable - Sales tax increment - 1-20 Corridor 
Receivable - Sales tax increment - Tower Drive 

Long-tenm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fiinds. 

Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable 
Deferred amount on reflinding bonds 
Compensated absences payable 
Obligation under capital leases 
Note payable 
Claims and judgments payable 
Other post-employment benefits 

hitemal service funds are used by management to account for the provision of 
repair and maintenance services and motor fuels to various City departments. 
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are 
included in goverrunental activities in the statement of net assets. 

34^,831 
13>922 

305,655 
83.611 

(1.687,801) 
(170,232.551) 

1,690,153 
(5,933,536) 
(2,147,939) 
(1,718,818) 
(7.828.227) 
(5.052,605) 

750,019 

(192,911,324) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Capital assets, net 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 

Net assets of govenunental activities 

3,122,565 
9.805 

51,741 
2,538.670 
(506,825) 

5,215.956 

$ 82,759,733 

The notes to the fmancial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Statement E 

CITY OF MONROE 

Montoc, Louiciaaa 

Statement of Revenues, ExpcodJhires, aod 

Changftj in FuniJ Balances 

Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Tasct 
Ad valorem 
Otha 
Salei 
Feet, chirgei wd commUsIont fcff tervicei 
Use of mofiey md property 
OOiCT tevenuci 
FitiM and Forferturej 
Inl erfiov emme n lal 
Fedofil granli 
Stale srants 
Lool granu 

LjwjniB, pamiti, and useMmenlj 

ToUl Revenues 

MajirFandi 

!,3I4.4B0 

31.887.986 

8,0!9.6J4 

i48,S08 

150,769 

769,639 

B21,767 
2,544,151 

2,709.272 

56,443,373 

Special Rcvcnat Pebl Scrvire 

Ctpiut 
Jnfrutructure 

)3,424.268 

SaluTitx Bond 

13,380.893 

43.375 I 

Capi'tal ProJecU 

Airport 
Tcrtnhiflf 

98,406 S 

9.D37.BB3 
4t9.7M 

.406 9.45E.470 

Gardecr 
Denver BIdg 

LOOO,CW> 

1,000.000 

Othe 

3B4.605 

Total 

15,215.888 

M99,085 

10.4! 5.064 

1,145,577 

97J7B 

153,283 

178,393 

2,483.757 

327.B01 

30,000 

907.167 

55.683.943 

9.235.21) 

48B.47D 

304,052 

948,032 

12;J43,437 

3.291,736 

1.030,000 

2.709,272 

95,640,405 

EXPENDITUBJES 
Currenl 
Genera) govcnun em 
L((psl»live 
Jud'cial 
Executive 
FiniJiciaJ idmirtinration 

Public rafefy 
Police 

Fire 
Public woAs 
Cultwre and recreation 
PlannniE and urban devdopmpnt 
Economic developmenf and atfictanni 

Capital outlay 
Debt wrvice: 
Debt service principle 
Debl lervice inlcrcrt 
Cipitat IcaiB principle 
CapiiaJ leau iMetetl 
JudgmenU 

Total Expend itufej 

Excoi (deficiency) of rcvenuM 
ovei expenditure! 

Other Fltmacini Sources (Uies) 
Bond procecdc 
Bond inue discount 
Sakofuicu 
TtiiaUn in 
TransfcTBoul 
Insurance proceadi 

Toul Othef Finû C!r̂ g Source* (Usei) 

Net ctitngei in fuod bthDicei 

Fond bilinces - bepwimj ( u reitattd, Note 18) 

Fond fatlances - ending 

296,371 

2,875.359 

780.S24 

7.223.678 

12.534^01 

12.013.973 

9,139,534 

2.754.580 

8B3.90B 

SI6,611 

280.000 

57.188 

) 6 U M 
123,914 
67.478 

50.028,879 

6,414.494 

262.3B4 

1.050.771 

(7.228,589) 

100.000 

(5.815.234) 

599.260 

12,275.526 

S 12,875.786 S 

72B,82B 

728,828 

12,695.440 

1,000.000 

() 0,483 J7B) 

(9,453,276) 

3.212.162 

14.601.350 

17,813,512 S 

27.324 

4.618.340 

5.159.585 

9,805,249 

(9.706,843) 

9.782,212 

9.782,212 

75.369 

5.833.420 

5,908.789 3 

840,401 

9,775,760 

10.616.161 

(>.\57,691) 

19.250,000 

(74.664) 

(1.623,276) 

17,552,060 

16.394.369 

(860.999) 

15.533,370 

S.260J48 

5.260,348 

(4.260,348) 

4,260348 

4.260.34fi 

87,873 

575,676 

4.359,505 

3.606,-«9 

276,770 

554.835 

2.037.603 

347.982 

11.536.675 

3.351,135 

2.3O2.0S8 

29,036,631 

(13,520.743) 

6,765.003 

106,563 

8,730.996 

(5,945J)JS) 

9,656.627 

(4.164.116) 

46.025.210 

J 41,861,094 

296,371 

2.963.232 

780.624 

8.667.079 

16,893.806 

IS.620.462 

10,145,132 

3.309,415 

2,921.511 

347.982 

27,3 S9 J94 

8,249,475 

7.518.86) 

161,360 

123^14 

87.478 

105.476,096 

(9,835.691) 

26,015,003 

(74.664) 
369,147 

34,824.327 

C;5;ZB 1.078) 

100.000 

25,952.735 

16,117,044 

77,875,507 

S 93,992.55) 

Tbc na\fix to the financial jlatetnenti ar* tn integr*] put of Ihii rtaiomont. 
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statement F 
C I T Y O F M O N R O E 
Monroe,, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Sta tement of Revenues, 

Expendi tures , and Changes in Fund Balances 

of Governmenta l Funds 

to llie S ta tement of Activities 

For the Yea r Ended April 30, 2010 

Net change in fund balances - total Eovetnmental funds S 16,117.044 

GoveiTimtntaJ funds repon capital Dullays as expenditures. HowevM. in the 
stalemcnt of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported 2J depreciation exf>tnse. 

Capital oullay [net of 516,630.521 capital contributions to business activities) 
Depreciation expense 

J 10.758,874 
(8.768.877) 1.989,997 

The net effeii of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets, 
such as sales and trade-ins: 

Proceeds for sales 
Gain (loss) oti sales 
Loss on abflndonment of projecl 

(369.146) 
339,241 

(387.35S) (417.263) 

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after year-end 
fliey are not considered "available" revenues in iht governmentai funds. 

Property tax revenue - (}eneral Fund 
Property tax revenue - Airport Debt Service Fund 
Saks tax increment -1-20 Corridor 
Sales tax increment - Tower Drive 

29.767 
13,922 
80,757 
(3.909) 120.537 

The issuance of lonE-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the 
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, ho-vvever. 
has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental fiinds report the effect of issuance 
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued. Vi*ereas these 
amounts arc deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. 

Deferred bond issuance costs ^ 
Amortization of bond issuance costs 
Principal payments 
Proceeds for bonds and certificates 
CapitaJ lease payments 

S20.055 
(417,419) 

7,668.340 
(26,015.003) 

742.495 (17,201,532) 

Payments to an escrow agent to refund bonded debt are reported in 
Governmental Funds as Other Financing Sources. The amount paid 
to the escrow agent forprincipaJ is removed from the long-tenn bonded 
debt in the Statement of Net Assets. The deferred part of the payment 
paid to the escrow agent is shown as a reduction of long-teroi debt in 
the Statement of Net Assets. The deferred amount is amortized over 
the lesser oftbe life of the original bonds or the life of the refunding 
bonds. 

Current year amortizatioD (424.072) (424,072) 

Some expenses reported in llis statement of activities do not nsjuJie the a a 
of current financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures 
m governmental funds. 

Accrued interest payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Claims and judgments payable 

Other post-employment benefits are reported in the govenimeDtal funds 
as cxpetjdrfures when paid The unfimded annual contribution is tejxirted 
in the Statement of Activities as it accnies. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities 
to individual funds. The net revemie (expense) of the inicmaj service fiinds is 
reported wifli governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of govcmraental activities 

(183,685) 
(461,010) 
(525,088) (1.169.7K3) 

(3.429,953) 

1.46U25 

The notes to the financial swiemeots are an integral part of this statement 
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CJtY OF MONROE 

Monrot, Louiiiana 
Slatcment of Revsnud, Expeniej. and 

CHangtS in Fund Ntt A.vsels 

Proprielnry Fiir>tli 

For the Ywr Ended April 30, 2010 

OperJiHnf revenuu 
Diarja Tor wn'kei 
Remind fees 
Fwei 
Adt'cilrEuig 
Tlct« JIJM and OOIM 

AdmidloM 
ConccKiora and ridci 
WaioiiJts 

Olbcf op«mine rtytnns 
Air Indutlriil Pari; rent 

Tolil openiinE revenuei 

OptnHnE eipeniti 

Benofm paid ic pmidpviu 

Salajia. wnet, wd towrrit 

Mitawli, repiira, «jid supylici 

UliWei and comaniniutioni 

Deprcdai3ofi and vrwnizaiton 

Slwp«p«a« 

Ituu;vice 

Promolet*! espenjB 

OihtT opfrtling ervpewEi 

Total operuint cUpcmu 

Oparalkij (Dcotn* <b«l 

HoDopcralIng nvmmi (upenKi) 
Opcruittg Ennu 
tile ertKcb 
Woesi BWome 

ToUt nonapenlQit revvnuei (enpencs) 

lf»come Qoa) beTcFfecoolribulwra 

Crther rmujcing Brttrwi (utei) 
Cipili] MirtiibulJorH 
Tniatcn in 
Tnrufejjoul 

Chmse in r>« wwti 

Total net m t t i ~ t»cmnjn| 

Total KI itseb • tmimg 

Monr»c 

BetlMaJ 

Airport 

S 1.161,101 

7.W4 

520,516 

2BS,617 

Manrae 

Trartitt 

Syilcm 

C J15.727 

M,I33 

i .m 

Bajfnui-tTpi 

Major Ftf/iJi 

Mosrwc 

a^z 
CenUr 

S •*t2,4l3 

30,000 

1.]5I.186 

2fi9J31 

6.152 

e Aehvititi - Enlorpriie Fundi 

W^ilei Sewer 

FiKKl Fimfl 

I a,660,7R4 

J <,697.^16 

Non-major 

Entcrpr iw 

r P.-S5J 

t7,(lW 

15.01) 

Enlerpriie 

Tola! 

X t J ! 5 , M 9 

S75.727 

Gt,77G 

1.152,1 M 

2I3.S37 

376.W1 

8.660.7M 

fl .697.^16 

H9,«16 

:8?,627 

CixcmmeDlal 

Acllifllicj' 

Inlcrnat 

Service 

Fund 

?,012,691 

2,36S.S97 

Cies,fi«si> 

O.OIB.19^) 

5.W5,506 

7.997,633 

25,tM2,6l5 

(1.960.044) 

(l,QU,m) 3.2<g,3(M 

<i,«oi.B«) o.m.MO) 

1.771.633 

59,793 

^.599. IDS 

1,890,082 J7.770,M9 

6t4, in 

\6Afin 

150,015 

J.Otil.OlO 

) U 7 0 

3S(i.3ll 

2.174,663 

l . IMJ7< 

1P0,6W 

633,^12 

311.963 

259,61? 

917.764 

97.514 

4 « . 6 9 0 

510,428 

136,602 

745,769 

370.003 

2,539.344 

2,02(1,402 

633.117 

I,11S,32E 

2,956 

71B,464 

1,9J 6.003 

1.110,751 

6J6.790 

4 ^ 5 , 4 4 7 

491,331 

94G,SPl 

262,870 

91.404 

65,486 

45,221 

S1,D«) 

)I7,I1J 

9J3».637 

4.131,724 

2 ,n5 ,3«5 

7.77 I.I 30 

5os,nf 
766.810 

2,219.119 

6.416,556 

7B3.03S 

16,609 

37.744 

105.345 

J27.92I 

13.9S9 

3.232,770 7.051,311 

(1,332,688) 1,602.40! 

910,772 

9(0,772 

(I7.S0S) 

(J7,80IJ 

(3S1.9ie> 

lMil.066) 

(69S.9S2) 

6,423.212 

[I.43&.746) 

790.682 

24.589,550 

(3,989.996) 

(3S.02S) 

(35,025) 

(4.025.011) 

2,017,161 

76,405,247 

< J.230.760) 

(249.985) 

2S2J89 

X403 

117,480 

27.465,623 

(9,694 774) 

2.241,204 

(1.036,002) 

(35,025) 
1,961,546 

3.138,723 

($,556,051) 

16.630421 

2.024,022 

(],i>26.gD5) 

10,171.690 

137,877.212 

359.334 

33,040,248 J 4.G5S.P01 5,727,230 S 25.3(0.232 S 78,422.408 J 819,883 J 141,048,902 

I.46).326 

3.754,630 

5,215,956 

TTw now to tfie Tinuitial ftuuBOtt «f» em ioltfral part of iIiH nalEtncM, 
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CITV OF MONROE 

Monroe, Louisiana 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Cash tlo'^rt frem optra t in t acrtvilia 
CaA recejvtd from tuslomers i 
Cadi p i y m w u B w p p l i m fo! soodj and lervkei 
CBJh payments lo dnploytes for lervices ind benafitt 

Nei caih provided by (med Tor) e^^tiaw^ aclivirics 

Ca(h (l«wf froni noncapital (iaaiidne acfnlfiei 

OperaiiDj jranu 
Ad vaJonm tvccs 
Tranrfenin 
Trasircri CHit 

Not cw4) pfovUwJ by (ujed for) 
ooncapttal finmcinc acTrviiicf 

Cajb nowr fram capital and related TinanrinE attivititj 
C»pl\al G t t n b 
AcqwRDDn of uphal u i t t i 
Cash contributed by City of Monro* 

[nlufVK« PToCCBdl 
Prindpal paid cm debt 
toleresj paid on debt 

Net o A pnTvidcd by (u»d for) 
Snandnc activities 

Casb Howi rrom b i v a l u n aeCMllei 
Interest leccivad oc iavejtiDenli 

Net c a * prcrAJcd by juveninx affivitiei 

Het incrtaw: (dccreate) In tartt and eaeh c«p*ralcnU 

C«jh e x l o s b equWakntt, May 1. MOT 

Caihdndcatheqtr lvnlenls , April 30,2010 3 

Manroi 
Rctlorul 
Airport 

; 1.701.571 s 
(603 J T t ) 
(661,194) 

4i9,299 

fMS.990) 

(145.990) 

( I .9I6J59) 
8,927.313 

(58.946) 

21*^63 

340^588 J 

Monroe 

T r a m l l 

Sntcm 

510,648 S 
(2,346.193) 
(2,137.843) 
(3,973,586) 

1.808.624 

1.771.63J 

3.580,257 

439,5W 
( - 7 , « I ) 

391,629 

0,''!») 

2.600 

900 

Burtnt icTypa^ 

M a l e r F o n d r 

Monroe 
C.>4e 

Cenler 

2.M4.574 I 
(1.711.471) 

(949.665) 
(647.562) 

976.621 

(344.066) 

632.562 

-

05,0CO> 

26,000 

11,000 S 

LcfivKier-Enlerfi 

Water 

Fund 

8JJ79.9B S 
(2.06S.995) 

(2,603,751) 
3,710.243 

fl.136,746) 

(1.436.746) 

(819.965) 
625,024 

. P«,9^'}, . 

2.071,556 

3,052.447 

5.131,003 J 

iriie Fund* 

Sewer 
Fund 

4,516,712 J 
(2.443,401) 
(I.972.821)_ 

170,560 

(6.097.411) 

6.042.112 

(101,660) 

(35,025) 

091,984) 

(21.424) 

46.452 

25.021 I 

Other 
EolcrpriM 

Fundt 

331.911 I 

(553.S2S) 

(1,164.I271_ 

976,630 
252.389 

U 2 9 , 0 I 9 

(64,191) 

(".«"). _ 

2,500 

Total 

17,595.545 S 
(9.791,163) 

(9.275.555) 
( l , 4 7 i J 2 } _ 

I.«0».624 
I.P53;i5l 
2,024.022 

(1.926.802) 

J.<59,102 

415.510 
(16.016,547) 
15.594.519 

(I0I,6«)) 
05.025) 

a IS. 133) 

2.264.795 

3.2«,224 

5^11019 S 

Covemmenlal 

Att ivi t iu -
Inlcmal 

Service 

Fu»td 

9,866.026 

(600.315) 
(8,561.031) 

697.680 

359.534 

359.534 

. 

293 
293 

J.0S7.5C7 

2.065,051 

3.122.565 

RccoAdllBiiKn of eperatlD| Mcfme tc net caih 
pravided by (und Tor) operatiot aetivDicf 

Oper»t; i i , ( te .) 

Adjitttroenb to reccnrilE operaiijjg income (kw) lo 

D El c u h provided by cf>end nx. acti n 6et 
DtpfEflaimi and amortiatioo 
Ctmrgt W> ajHli and t i i ^ t i t a 

Accounb loeovaWe 
Daethaooftwifuncfa 

bwenlorict 
Prepaid ejtpemei 

AMWmti payable 
DtiB lo odrn fimdc 
r>cfcrTtd ICWUMJB 
CwtomcrdepoBU 
(j3»T7pen»ted alweiieej 

Net cjoh provided by (mod for) 
operatmx octWtiei 

S (713.689) S 

1.091.029 

51.9)6 
60,748 

3,241 

(23.309) 

15J56 

S 429,299 J 

(3,960.044) S 

623.412 

152.931 
(255^15) 

M 2 2 

(556.636) 

( K . S i J ) 

36.9SJ 

, ft'^.?!^; 

(U32.«8») I 

5I0.42S 

9.621 

SJ*I 

( J . S « ) 
15.328 

685 
4.(44 

175,043 
(11.901) 

(647.562) $ 

1,602.403 J 

1,115,321 

P42,953) 

17 .7« 
(4397) 

(151,829) 

1,456,169 

€2,161 
(44.4071 

3,710,243 S 

(3.989.996) I 

4,365.447 

(110.634) 

(8,377) 

(69,153) 

( 1 * , 7 ^ . 

170^560 I 

(1.230.760) S 

65.416 

46 

^71) 

63 
(1,934) 

6.P36 

4,001 

(V?^- '??^. 

(9.694.774) I 

7.771,130 

(232.066) 
11»,959) 

19.090 

a.tri) 
(707,200) 

1J49,839 
10,180 

237,204 
(36.730^ 

(1.473^173^ S 

1,101.499 

105.345 

(4.157) 
151.1 U 

7,494 

(320.863) 
a.049.122) 

697,680 

Tht notn to ihe financial sitiemerKi aie u iotetral pan of tha statemuiL 
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Ŝ fltement J 
CITY OF MONROE 
MonroCj Louisiana 

Statement of Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

April 30, 2010 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ' 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Cuncnt liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Deposits due to others 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 

Reserved for retirement benefits 

Total net assets 

Police 
Pension 

and Relief 
Fund 

£ 117.320 $ 

117.320 

117.320 

$ 117,320 S 

Bus Drivers' 
Pension 

and Relief 
Fund 

48.099 J 

48.099 

48,099 

48,099 S 

Agency 
Funds 

752.810 $ 
134.571 

887.381 

2.569 
884.812 

887,381 

- S 

Total 

9I8;229 $ 
134,571 

1,052,800 

2,569 
884,812 

887381 

165,419 

165,419 $ 

Component Units 
Agency Funds 

City Court 
of Monroe 

1.265,336 $ 
1,833 

1,267.169 

227,809 
1,039,360 

1.267.169 

$ 

Monroe City 
Marshal 

28,131 
98 

28,229 

28,229 

28.229 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF MONROE 

Monroe, Louisiana 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Statement K 

ADDITIONS 
Investment income 

Interest 
Individual account transactions 

Contributions by the City 

Total additions 

Police 
Pension 

and Relief 
Fund 

Bus Drivers' 
Pension 

and Relief 
Fund 

601 $ 

601 

124 

124 

DEDUCTIONS 
Benefits paid 
Administrative expense 

Total deductions 

Changes in net assets held for pension benefits 

1,673 
68 

L74I 

(1,140) 

9,100 

9,100 

(8,976) 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets^ end of year 

118,460 

117,320 $ 

57,075 

48,099 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Statement L 

CITY OF MONROE 

Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Net Assets 

All Discreetly Presented Component Units 

April 30, 2010 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts receivable 

Total current assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation 

Total assets 

LIABILll lES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Obligation under czpital lease 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

City Court 
of Monroe 

$ 1,425,910 $ 

15,855 
36,079 

1,477,844 

119,399 

1,597,243 

8,875 

Monroe City 
Marshal 

126,793 $ 
39,633 

1,075 
31,234 

198,735 

70,079 

268,814 

2,493 

3,699 
4.523 

Total 

1,552,703 
39,633 
16,930 
67,313 

1,676,579 

189,478 

1,866,057 

11,368 

3,699 
4,523 

Total liabilities 8,875 10,715 19,590 

Net Assets 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 
Umestricted 

119,399 
1,468,969 

61,857 

196,242 
181,256 

1,665,211 

Total net assets $ 1,588,368 $ 258,099 $ 1,846,467 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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statement M 
CITY OF MONROE 

Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Statement of Activities 

All Discreetly Presented Component Units 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

EXPENOITURES 
Judiciary 

Personal services 
Operating services 
Materials and supplies 
Travel and other 
Depreciation 
Other 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

City Court 
ofMooroe 

(1.246,044) $ 
(254,265) 

(29,313) 
(37,046) 
(33,200) 

(1.599,868) 

Monroe City 
Marshal 

(843,608) $ 
(381,484) 

(16,608) 
(6,493) 

(24.370) 
(29,894) 
(1,144) 

(1,303,601) 

TotaJ 

(2,089,652) 
(635.749) 

(45,92 J) 
(43,539) 
(57,570) 
(29,894) 

(U144) 
(2,903,469) 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
Fees, charges, and court costs: 

Marshal's fees 
Court costs 
Civil fees 
Probatiori fees 
Reinstatement fees 
Bond forfeitures 
Other charges for services 

Total program revenues 

'N&t program expense 

219,989 
37,U0 
74,850 

1,188 
29.178 
39,846 

402,161 

(1,197.707) 

344,800 

31,669 
376,469 

(927.132) 

344,800 
219,989 

37,110 
74.850 

1,188 
29,178 
71.515 

778,630 

(2,124.839) 

GENERAL REVENUES 
intergovemmwital - City of Monroe 
Interest income 
Investment earnings 
Bond forfeitures 
Other income 
Loss on disposition of capital assets 

Total general revenues 

Changes in net assets 

1,325,520 
3,294 

6,915 

(51) 
1,335,678 

875,276 

1,432 
31,191 

907,899 

2,200.796 
3,294 
1.432 

31,191 
6,915 

(51) 
2,243,577 

137.971 (19;i33) 118,738 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year 1,450,397 277,332 1,727,729 

End of year 1,588,368 $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

258,099 $ L846,467 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes To The Financial Statements 
As of And For The Year Ended April 30, 2010 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Monroe, Louisiana (the City) operates under a Home Rule Charter approved by the 
voters in 1979. This charter provides for an executive branch of government headed by a mayor and 
a legislative branch of government consisting of five council members. The City's combined balance 
sheet includes the accounts of all City operations. The City's major operations include police and 
fire protection, garbage and trash collection, economic development, parks and recreation, other 
cultural activities, and general administration services. In addition, the City owns and operates six 
major enterprise activities: airport, water distribution, sanitary sewerage systems, mass transit 
system, civic center, and gardens and zoo. 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) promulgates generally accepted accounting 
principles and reporting standards with respect to activities and transactions of stale and local 
government entities. The GASB has issued a codification of governmental accounting and fmancial 
reporting standards. This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are recognized as 
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local government The fmancial reporting 
practices of the City comply with the financial reporting standards established by the GASB. 

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

As the governing authority of the City, for reporting purposes, the City of Monroe is considered a 
separate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary 
government (the City), (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

GASB Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, sets forth criteria for determining which, if 
any, component units should be considered part of the City of Monroe for financial reporting 
purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within Ihe reporting entity 
is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining 
financial accountability, which include: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and: 
a. The abihty of the City to impose its will on that organization and/or; 
b. The potential for the organization to provide speciEc financial benefits to or impose 

specific financial burdens on the City. 

2. Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting majority, but are fiscally 
dependent on the City. 
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3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if 
data of the potential component unit were not included because of the nature or 
significance of the relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the City has determined that the following component units 
should be considered as part of the City reporting entity. 

Discrete Component Units 

City Court of Monroe - The City Court of Monroe is a legally separate entity. The City 
appoints none of the governing board (Judges) of the court. Judges of the court are 
independently elected officials. Although the City Council can, to a limited degree, impose its 
win on the court through City Coimcil ordinances, the City provides office space, coxut facifities 
and some furnishings, and compensation to the court. Although the court functions entirely 
within the City of Monroe, it provides no direct services to the City or City Council. However, 
based on criteria 2 above, it has been determined that the cotirt is a component unit of the City 
and should be included in the City's financial statements through discrete presentation. 

Monroe City Marshal - The Monroe City Marshal's office is a legally separate entity. The City 
does not appoint the governing board (Marshal) of the marshal's office. The City Marshal is an 
independently elected official. Although the City cannot impose its wiU on the City Marshal, it 
does provide a substantial portion of his compensation, facilities, and furnishings. Although the 
City Marshal fimctions entirely within the City of Monroe, he provides no direct service to the 
City, but is rather an officer of the City Court. However, based on criteria 2 above, it has been 
determined that the City Marshal is a component imit of the City and should be included in the 
City's financial statements through discrete presentation. 

Blended Component Units 

Economic Development - Two not-for-profit entifies perform administrafive functions for the 
City's incremental sales tax economic development districts. These entities are the Tower Drive 
Economic Development Corporation and the (jarrett Road Economic Development Corporation. 
There also exist two other special districts within the City - The Downtown Economic 
Development District and The Sonthside Economic Development District. These two districts 
are charged with planning and delivery of public improvements, facilities, and services in their 
respective districts. For financial reporting purposes, all of these entities are considered an 
integral part of the City, not component mats. This decision is due to the City keeping the books 
and records for these entifies, the City as a whole reaping the benefits from the use of the 
proceeds of the incremental tax bonds issued by the not-for-profits, and that the districts and the 
separate not-for-profits are ministerial and structural in nature, as disbursement of funds is 
subject to the control oftheCity through the plan of government. As such, they axe presented as 
separate Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project funds within those categories of the 
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City's general-purpose financial statements. 

Included in the evaluation of potential component units of the City of Monroe were the Monroe 
City School Board, the Ouachita Council of Governments, the Monroe Housing Authority, the 
City of Monroe Employees Credit Union, the Monroe/West Momoe Public Trust Financing 
Authority, and the Ouachita Parish Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness Agency. 
None of these entities were determined to be component units of the City of Monroe reporting 
entity. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The City's basic financial statements consist of the government-wide statements on all of the 
non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units and the fund financial 
statements (individual major fund and combined non-major fund). The statements are prepared 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
applied to governmental units. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting 
issued prior to December 1,1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide financial 
statements and the proprietary fimd financial statements to the extent that those standards do not 
confhct with or contradict guidance of the GASB. Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise 
funds, subject to the same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-
sector guidance. 

GOVERNMENT-^WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the statement 
of activities for.all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and the total for its 
component units. As a general rule, the effect of iateifimd activity has been removed fi-om these 
statements. Exceptions to the general nile are payments between the enterprise fiinds to other 
various functions of government for charges such as sewer fees and contributions between the 
primary government and its component units which are reported as external transactions. The 
government-wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the City as an entity and 
the change in aggregate fmancial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 

Governmental Activities represent programs which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues. 

Business-Type Activities arc financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for 
goods and services. 

The primary government is reported separately firom the legally separate component units as 
detailed in section (A) of this note. 
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The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses axe those that axe clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect costs are not allocated by function for 
financial reporting in this statement; however, certain indirect costs have been directly allocated 
as administrative fees to grants and special fund programs. Program revenues include: (1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit fiom goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. This includes internally dedicated resources such as a restricted property tax. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

The City uses funds, both major and non-major, to report on its financial position and the results 
of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or 
activities. A fimd is a, separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that 
comprises its assets, liabihties, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures ox expenses, as 
appropriate. 

Emphasis of fund reporting is on the maj or fund level in either the governmental or business-type 
categories. Non-major funds (by category) or fund type are summarized into a single column in 
the basic financial statements. 

Funds are classified into three categories; governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Each 
category, in turn, is divided into separate "fimd types". Governmental funds are used to accormt 
for a government's general activities, where the focus of attention is on the provision of services 
to the public as opposed to proprietary funds where the focus of attention is on recovering the 
cost of providing services to the public or other agencies through service charges or user fees. 
Fiduciary funds are used to accoimt for assets held for others. The City's current operations 
require the use of the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fimd categories. The fund types 
used by the City are described as follows: 

Governmental Activities Presented as Governmental Funds in the Fund Financial Statements: 

General Fund - This fund is the general operating fimd of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources of the City except for those required to be accounted for in another fiind and 
is always a major fimd. 

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. The Capital Infrastructure fiand is the only major Special Revenue Fund, 
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Debt Service Funds - These funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. All general 
obligation bonds are dhect obligations of the City. Principal and interest axe payable fi:om ad 
valorem taxes levied on all taxable property and improvements within the City. Incremental 
Sales Tax Bonds are secured by a pledge of incremental state (40%) and City (60%) sales and 
use taxes within the boundaries of the respective districts and do not involve the pledge of the 
full faith and credit of the City. All long-term debt is reported in the Statement of Net Assets. 
The Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund is considered a major fund. 

Capital Project Funds ~ These funds are used to accoimt for financial resources to be used fox the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, improvements and other major projects 
(other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The Airport Terminal and Gardner Denver 
Building Capital Projects are considered major fimds. 

Proprietary Funds: 

Enterprise Funds - These funds axe used to account fox operations (a) that are fmanced and 
operated in a manner similar to private bxisiness enterprises - where the intent of the governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, ox 
(b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, 
expenses incurred, and/ox net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, pubhc policy, 
management control, accountability or other purposes. Net cash losses of the Enterprise Funds 
are subsidized by the (general Fund. Enterprise funds are presented in the business-type activities 
column in government-wide financial statements and the major funds section of the basic 
financial statements. The following Enterprise funds axe considered major funds: Monroe 
Regional Airport, Monroe Transit, Monroe Civic Centex, Watex and Sewer. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal service hinds are used to account for the financing of goods 
and/or services provided by one department ox agency to other departments or agencies of the 
City, or to other govexnments, on a cost-xeimbuxsement basis. The City operates a centxal shop 
and warehouse which provides inventory storage, repair and maintenance, and fueling services 
solely to other City user departments (with the exception of the Monroe Transit System) at rates 
designed to cover the costs of operations, including depreciation and debt service. Since the 
principal users of the internal service fund axe the City's governmental activities, financial 
statements of the internal service fimd are consohdated into the governmental activities column 
when presented at the govemment-wide level To the extent possible, die costs of these services 
axe xeflected in the appxopriate functional activity. 

During fiscal year 2006, the City began self-insuring its employees' group insurance which is 
handled through a thixd party administratox. 
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Ln accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement 20, the City has elected not to apply 
FASB statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, to proprietary activities 
uidess they axe adopted by the GASB. 

Fiduciary Fimds: 

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee 
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other 
funds. Theseinclude Agency Funds and Pension Trust Funds. Agency funds axe ciistodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Pension 
trust funds account for pension funds established for classified employees of various departments 
and is accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds since capital 
maintenance is critical. 

C BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT FOCUS 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCML STATEMENTS: 

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues axe recorded ^ e n earned and 
expenses are recoxded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes axe recognized in the year for which they axe levied. 

FUND FINANCL4L STATEMENTS: 

The financial reporting treatment applied to a fiind is determined by its measurement focus. All 
governmental hands axe accounted for using a current fmancial xesouxces measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on 
the balance sheet. Operating statements fox these funds pxesent increases (i.e., revenues and 
other fmancing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current 
assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used fox xepoxtkig all govexnmental fiind types and 
the fiduciaxy fund type agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues 
axe recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they become both measurable and 
available). "Measurable" means the amoimt of the transaction can be determined and "available" 
means collectible within the current period ox soon enough thereafter to be used to pay habilities 
of the current period. Ad valorem taxes, grants, and fees, charges, and commissions for services 
have been treated as susceptible to accxual. 
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The City uses the following practices in recognizing and reporting revenues and expenditures in 
the governmental fund types: 

Revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes 
are levied by the City in October or November and axe billed to taxpayers in December. Billed 
taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year; however, by precedent, this is 
normally extended until February 1. Revenues from.ad valorem taxes axe budgeted in the year 
billed to the extent collections axe expected. The City bills and collects its own property taxes 
using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Ouachita Parish. 

Sales taxes are considered "measurable" when in the hands of the City Sales Tax Collector and 
are recognized as revenue at that time. 

Federal and state grants are normally "expenditure driven", which means that the City does not 
earn, or is not entitled to, the grant funds until a liability for the expenditure has been incurxed. 
Amounts xeceived in excess of actual expendituxes at yeax end axe xeflected as deferred revenue 
on the fund's balance sheet. 

Interest earnings on time deposits axe xecognized as xevenue when the time deposits have 
raatuxed and the mterest is available. Substantially all othex revenues axe recogmzed when 
actually received by the City. 

Eypenditures: 

Expendituxes in the governmental funds' are genexally recognized undex the modified accxual 
basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. 

Compensated absences axe xecognized as expendituxes when leave is actually taken ox when 
employees, or thek heirs, axe paid fox accrued leave upon xetirement or death. Compensated 
absences axe xepoxted in the Statement of Net Assets as a long-texm liabihty and expensed in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Pxincipal and intexest on long-term debt is recognized when due. 

Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds 

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounthig. Their revenues axe xecognized when they are earned, and theix expenses axe 
recognized when they are incurred. 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds include Trust and Agency Funds. Trust and Agency Fund assets and liabilities 
are accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the pension trust funds, 
which are discussed above. 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Proceeds from issuing long-term debt, capital leases and transfers between funds that are not 
expected to be repaid are accoimted for as other financing sources (uses) and are recognized 
when the underlying events occur. 

D. BUDGET PRACTICES 

The City foUows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data xeflected in these financial 
statements: 

1. At least ninety days priox to the beginning of the fiscal year, the Mayor submits to ,the 
City Council an operating and capital budget for the succeeding year. 

2. A pubhc hearing is scheduled by the City Council aftex allowing fox at least ten days 
notice to the public at the time the budget is initially submitted to the City Coimcil. The 
budget fox the succeeding yeax must be finally adopted by the Council no later than the 
second-to-last regular meeting of the fiscal year. 

3. The Mayox may authorize transfers of budgetaxy amounts withia departments. However,, 
any revisions requiring alteration of levels of expenditures or transfers between 
departments must be approved by the City Council. 

4. Operating appropriations, to the extent not expended, lapse at year end. Capital 
appropriations continue in force until the project is completed or deemed abandoned after 
three years of no activity. 

5. All legally adopted budgets of the City axe adopted on a basis consistent with generally 
accepted accoimting pxinciples (GAAP). 

6. For the year ended April 30,2010, the City adopted a budget fox the General Fund and all 
Special Revenue Funds. 
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E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND EQUITY 

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS: 

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. State law and the City's investment policy allow the City to invest in collateralized 
certificates of deposits, government backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored 
investment pool and mutual funds consisting solely of government backed securities. 

Deposits with original maturity dates exceeding 90 days are classified as investments. 
Investments are reported at fair value. The state investment pool (LAMP) operates in accordance 
with state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of 
the pool shares. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: 

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles in business-type 
activities. Uncollectible amounts for customers' utility fees receivable are recognized as bad-
debts through the establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes 
available which would indicate the uncollectibihty of the paxticulax receivable. 

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES: 

Short-texm cash loans between funds are considered tempoxaxy hi nature. These amounts axe 
repoxted as "due from/to other fimds." Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities axe reported in the govemment-wide 
fmancial statements as "internal balances." 

INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS: 

Inventories are valued at average cost less write-downs for obsolete items. Inventories in the 
General and Proprietary Fimds consist of expendable suppHes and repair and maintenance items 
held for consumption. 

CAJ?ITAL ASSETS: 

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, other improvements, machinery and equipment, 
vehicles, fiimiture and fixtures, and infrastructure assets (streets, roads, bridges, drainage canals, 
and water and sewer systems) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the govemment-wide financial statements. The capitalization threshold for 
all movable capital assets is $3,000 per unit. 
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All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at 
estimated cost where no historical records are available. Donated fixed assets are valued at then 
fair market value on the date received. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add value to the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitali2ed. Major outlays for 
capital assets and improvements are capitalized at completion of constmction projects. 

Prior to 1985, the City had not maintained capital asset records on a current basis. Subsequently, 
the City completed reconstmcting its capital asset records. In those cases where it was not 
feasible to determine the original actual cost the assets were recorded at estimated cost derived 
by price level adj ustuig current replacement cost. It was not considered practicable to deteniune 
the souxce of investment in capital assets priox to Apxil 28, 1972. 

Depxeciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by pxopxietary funds is charged as an expense 
against their operations. Accumulated depxeciation is reported on enterprise fimd balance sheets. 
Depreciation on all capital assets, excluding land and improvements, has been provided ovex the 
estimated useful lives using the straight-tine method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Type of Capital Assets Numbexof Yeaxs 
...Buildings 10-50 . .... 

Improvements 7-50 
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10 
Vehicles 5 
Equipment 2-20 
Infirastmctuxe-Water System 30-50 
Infrastructure-Sewer System 10-30 
Infrastructure-Drainage Systems 25 
Infirastructure-Streets and Roads 20-50 

LONG-TERM DEBT: 

In the govemment-wide statement of net assets and in the proprietary fiind types' financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabihties. Bond 
prenaiums, discoimts, issuance costs, and gains (losses) on refiinding are deferred and amortized 
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable costs axe xepoxted 
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs axe xepoxted as deferred 
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt 

In the fimd financial statements, governmental fimd types recognize bond prenuums, discounts, 
and bond issuance costs during the cuxxent financial period. The face amount of the debt issue is 
xepoxted as "other financing sources." Premiums received on debt issuances axe reported as 
"othex financing sources" and discounts on debt axe reported as "other financing uses." 
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ACCUMULATED VACATION, SICK FA Y, AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: 

In the govenmaent-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund type fmancial statements, 
the total compensated absences liability is recorded as an expense and a long-term obhgation and 
allocated on a functional basis. In accordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and 
Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial 
Statements, (issued in March 2000), no compensated absences liability is recoxded at April 30, 
2009, in the govexnmental fund-type fmancial statements. 

Full time employees may earn up to 33 woxking days of vacation time pex yeax, depending upon 
length of service. At the end of each year, employees may carry forward up to 120 days of 
vacation time. Subject to the above conditions, unused vacation is paid to an employee upon 
retirement, separation, ox death at hourly rates being earned by that employee upon separation. 

The City also maintains a disability compensation plan which allows employees to draw an 
additional 30 days paid disability leave, once all the available sick and vacation accruals have 
been utitized. Individuals with long-term disability status are then eligible for an additional 180 
days of disability leave at 60 percent of their regular pay. Such amounts are not accmed in 
governmental funds, nor are they reflected in the General Long-Tenn Obligations Account 
Group due to the inabihty to estimate such Habihties, and the fact that any unused disability leave 
does not carry forward to the subsequent year. 

Firemen and policemen may receive up to one year's sick leave per illness as prescribed under 
Louisiana law. For aU other City employees, sick leave is accumulated at varying rates ranging 
up to 12 days per yeax. A maximum of 120 days of unused sick leave may be carried forward. 
Subject to the above limitations, employees' shall be compensated in cash for any accumulated 
unused sick leave when they are permanently separated from employment as a result of voluntary 
resignation, discharge, retirement or death. In the event of death, payment is made to the estate of 
the employee. The amount of payment for all imused sick leave is calculated at the employee's 
rate of pay in effect on the payday immediately pxeceding the employee's separation. 

RESER VES/DESIGNA TIONS OF FUND EQUITY: 

Some portions of fund balance in the governmental fund types are resexved to indicate that a 
poxtion of fund equity is legally xestricted to a specific future use and/or are not available for 
appropriation or expendituie. In the Genexal Fund a poxtion of the fund balance is reserved to 
indicate that it is not available for expenditure or appropriation as it consists of reservations for 
certain inventories, non-current xeceivables and pxepaid items vAmh axe not considered available 
spendable resources. The reserve of fund balance in the General Fund at April 30, 2010 is 
$353,195 and $599,691 is designated for capital improvements. 
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NETASSETS: 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of xelated debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balance of any debt pxoceeds used for the acquisition, construction, or 
impxovements of those assets. Net assets axe reported as restricted when there are limitations 
imposed on their use by external parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other 
governments. 

When both restricted and unrestricted xesouxces axe available fox use, it is the government's 
pohcy to use restricted xesouxces first, then unxestricted xesouxces as they axe needed. 

F. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES: 

The pxepaxation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and 
assumptions. Those estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and habihties and disclosure 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. They may also affect the reported 
amoimts of xevenues and expenses of pxoprietary funds and the govemment-v*dde financial 
statements during the reporting pexiod. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

a DEDICATED REVENUES: 

Sales taxes: 

A one-half per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for payment of salaries of city 
employees and capital improvements. The sales tax, which began on March 1, 1968, is for an 
indefinite period. 

A One per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for any lawful purpose of the City, 
mcludkig payment of opexatmg expenses. The sales tax, which began on January 1,1975, is for 
an indefinite period. 

A one pex cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund fox constructing, acquiring, 
extending, improving, maintaining, and operating coital improvements and facihties of die City 
and paying genexal operating expenses of the City. The sales tax, which began on Febmary 1, 
1983, is for an indefinite period. 

A ten year one per cent sales tax passed by the voters on November 8,1994 which was for the 
street program was extended by twenty-five years and its uses expanded by the voters on May 5, 
2001, The proceeds can be utilized fox all infirastmctuxes including but not limited to stxeets, 
water, sewer and drainage and other related capital expenditures. The tax will expire in 2029. 
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A 0.49 per cent city sales tax is dedicated to the General Fund for payment of salary increases of 
city firemen and policemen. The sales tax, which began Maxch 1, 2005, is fox an indefinite 
period. 

Property taxes: 

Recreation (1.73 mills), public safety (.98 mills) and drainage (1.21 mills) millages were 
renewed by the voters in 2003, levied in 2004 and will exphe with the 2013 tax roll. 

For both the Civic Center and the Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo,.2.50 mills was renewed 
by the votexs in 2008, levied in fiscal 2009, and will exphe with the 2017 tax xoU. 

Fox both the police and fixe departments, 1.50 mills was xenewed by the votexs in 2008, levied in 
fiscal 2009, and will exphe with tiie 2017 tax roll. 

Fox capital impxovements, 3.25 mills was renewed by the votexs in 2008, levied in fiscal 2009, 
and will expire with the 2017 tax roll. 

For airport hnprovements,^ 1.00 mills was passed by the voters in 2009, levied in fiscal 2009, and 
will exphe with the 2017 tax roll. 

2. FUND DEFICITS 

The Louisville Enhancement, Kansas Lane Comiector, and the MLV Runway have deceits of 
$30,600, $172,641 and $169,746 respectively. These deficits will be cleared by fiiture grants and 
bond proceeds. 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. The custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank 
failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to i t The City's policy to ensure there is no exposure 
to this risk is to xequixe each financial institution to pledge its' own securities to cover any amount in 
excess of Federal Depository Insuxance Coveiage. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a 
statutory xequirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days 
of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon 
demand. Accoxdingly, the City had no custodial credit risk related to its deposits at April 30,2010. 

At April 3 0,2010, the City has cash and cash equivalents, totaling $95,185,178, (mcluding $918,229 
in fiduciaxy funds) as follows: 
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Petty cash $ 20,011 
Demand deposits 63,641,373 
Money market funds 31,523,796 

Total $ 95,185,180 

These deposits are staled at cost, which approximates market. These securities axe held in the name 
of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding ox custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both 
parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances other than these backed by the U.S. government) 
at April 30, 2010, are secured, as follows: 

Bank balances $ 72,730,142 

Federal deposit insurance $ 750,000 
Pledged securities (uncollateralized) 74,918,921 
Total $ 75,668,921 

The money market accounts totaling $31,523,796 are utilized for the daily investment of idle cash of 
the City. The accounts are managed by the City's fiscal agent and consists of securities issued or 
guaranteed by the U.S. government. Investments axe in accoxdance with LRS 33:2955(A)(l)(e) and 
are not required to be covered by the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 

4. INVESTMENTS 

Custodial credit risk - investments. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counterparty, the government wiU not be able to recover the value of its 
investments ox collateral securities that axe in the possession of an outside party. The City's 
investments in Uruted States government securities are held by the City^s agent ia the City's name. 
Thexefoxe, the City had no custodial credit risk related to its investments at April 30, 2010. 

Under state law, the City may invest funds in obhgations of the United States, in federally-insured 
investments, or in time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks 
having their principal offices m. Louisiana. The City did not have investments at April 30,2010. 

Interest rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to 
declines in fair market values by limiting investment portfolio to "money market hivestments," 
which are defined as creditworthy, highly liquid investments with maturities of one year or less. 
Although there may be certain chcumstances in which longer-term securities are utitized, the general 
use of long-term securities shall be avoided. 
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Credit Risk The City's investment policy limits investments to fully hisured and/or fully-
collateralized certificates of deposits and direct and indirect obligations of U.S. government 
agencies. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City's investment policy limits the City's investment instxuments 
to: 1) certificates of deposit; 2) certain direct obligations of the U.S. Government; 3) bonds, 
debentures, notes, or othex evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and 
pxovided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America; and 
4) the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
The City participates in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). The LAMP is an 
investment pool estabtished as a cooperative endeavox to enable pubtic entities of the State of 
Louisiana to aggregate funds fox investment. 

RECEIVABLES 

Accountsxeceivableof $10,731,070 at April 30, 2010, axe comprised of the following: 

Fund Type 
MAJOR FXJNDS 
General 
Capital Infrastructure 
Airport Terminal 
Gardner-Denver 
Airport 
Transit 
Civic Center 
Water 
Sewer 

NONMAJOR FUNDS 
Special Revenues 
Debt Service 
Capital Projects 
Enterprise 
Internal Service 
Agency 

TOTAL: 

Taxes -
Ad Valorem 

$ 294,460 S 
-
-
-
-
-

34,806 
-
-

-
13,922 

-
34,806 

-
-

$ 377,994 $ 

Taxes-
Sales 

2,579,273 $ 
1,050,190 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

515,498 
979,594 

-
-
-

125,476 
5,250,031 $ 

Grants 

174,417 S 
-

689,221 
-
-

63.446 
-
-

22.239 

471,272 
-

323,304 
-
-
-

1,743,899 $ 

Accounts 

659,158 $ 
-
-

773,915 
46,845 

-
8,245 

1,097,162 
663,240 

9,349 
-

33,357 
24 

-
8,992 

3,300,286 $ 

Other 

46,347 $ 
-
' 
' 
' 
-

185 
350 
780 

1,290 
-
-
-

9,805 
103 

58,860 $ 

Total 

3.753,654 
1,050,190 

689,221 
773,915 

46,845 
63,446 
43,236 

1,097,512 
686,259 

997,409 
993,516 
356,661 

34.830 
9,805 

134,571 
10,731,070 

The allowance for doubtflil accounts was S130,279 as of April 30,2010. 
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CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

The following schedule presents changes in capital assets fox the yeax ended April 30, 2010. 

Govermnental Funds: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
CIP-Infrastructurc 

Total capital assets 
not being depreciated 

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment and Furniture 
Infrastructure 
School btiildings 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation 

• Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 

Total govermnental funds 
capital assets, net 

Internal Service Fund; 
Land 

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and vehicles 

Total coital assets 
being depreciated 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 

Total Internal Service Fund 
capital assets, net 

Total governmental activities 
capital assets, net 

April 30,2009 

$ 17,427,810 $ 

-
16,894,866 

34,322,676 

29,536,065 
26,033,871 

141,328,638 
i;229.953 

198,128.527 

(61,944,364) 

136,184,163 

170,506,839 

45,000 

3.406,242 
268,509 

3,674,751 

(1,075,734) 

2,599,017 

2,644,017 

$ 173,150.856 $ 

Additions 

2,017.072 $ 

-
6,798,375 

8,815.447 

5,730.349 
1,473,428 

15,766,942 
-

22,970,719 

(8,768,878) 
• • 

14,201,841 

23,017,288 

-

-
-

-

(105,345) 

(105,345) 

(105.345) 

22,911,943 $ 

Retirements 

$ 
-

(21,414,650) 

(21,414,650) 

(779.598) 
(2,175,481) 

-
~ 

(2,955,079) 

2,925,174 

(29,905) 

(21,444,555) 

-

-
(35,850) 

(35,850) 

35,850 

-

~ 

(21,444,555) $ 

April 30, 2010 

19,444,882 
-

2,278,591 

21.723,473 

34,486,816 
25,331,818 

157.095,580 
1.229.953 

218,144,167 

(67,788,068) 

150,356,099 

172,079,572 

45,000 

3,406.242 
232,659 

3.638,901 

(1.145,229) 

2,493,672 

2,538.672 

174,618.244 

45 



CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes To The Financial Statements 
As of And For The Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Business-type activities: 
Nondepreciable assets; 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Zoo animals 

Total capital assets 
not being depreciated 

Depreciable assets: 
Buildings/Improvements 
Infrastmcture 
Equipment 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 

Total business-type activities 
capita] assets, net 

Balance 
April 30, 2009 

% 5,542.940 $ 
9,537,443 

67,755 

15,148,138 

39,021,739 
165,725,995 
18,211,968 

222,959,702 

(96.184,720) 

126,774,982 

$ 141,923,120 S 

Additions 

t 
16,630.521 

24,893 

16,655,414 

24,335 
2,434,595 

373,623 

2,832,553 

(7,778,130) 

(4,945,577) 

11,709,837 $ 

Retirements 

S 
(2,434,595) 

-

(2,434,595) 

(4,517.814) -
(29,100) 

(940,485) 

(5,487,399) 

4,450,578 

(1,036,821) 

(3.471,416) $ 

Balance 
April 30,2010 

5,542,940 
23,733,369 

92,648 

29,368.957 

34,528.260 
168.131,490 
17.645,106 

220,304,856 

(99,512,272) 

120,792,584 

150,161,541 

Rethements of Construction mPxogxess (CEP) - Infirastmctuxe includes $387,358 foxanl-20pxoject 
that incurred sorne planning and engineering expense, but will not become a pxoject. 

Depxeciation expense was charged to functions of the primaxy government as follows: 
Governmental Activities: 

General Government $ 781,855 
Public Safety 830,308 
Pubhc Works 6,719,634 
Culture and Recreation 437,081 

Internal Service Fund 105,345 
Total depreciation expense - govemmentaj activities 

Business-Type Activities; 
Airport 
Transit 
Civic Center 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 
Non-major business-type activities 

Total depreciation expense - business -type activities 

$ _ 

$ 

$ _ 

8,874,223 

1,098,029 
623,412 
510,428 

1,115,328 
4,365,447 

65,486 
7,778,130 
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Included in equipment axe enexgy management system assets under capital lease with costs of 
$2,967,113 as fuxtiiex discussed in Note 10. 

The Central Shop and Warehouse land and building is carried on the City's balance sheet within the 
Intemal Service Fund. At April 30,2010, only aportion of the cost of the assets axe depxeciated as 
only the shop facility is cuxxently accounted for in the Internal Sexvice Fund. 

The Louisiana Puxchase Gardens and Zoo enterprise fimd carries its investment in animals on a 
sepaxate hne of its balance sheet. The cost shown on the balance sheet xelates only to animals that 
wexe puxchased, donated ox txaded. Animals boxn in the zoo have no cost attributed to them. Also, 
the zoo has a number of bird specimens which axe covered by the Migratory Bixd Treaty (MBT). 
Certain birds under the MBT have no cost associated with them because they may not be bought or 
sold. 

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM OPERATING AGREEMENT 

On July 9,1977, the voters of the City of Monroe authoxized a 50 yeax operating agreement between 
the City of Monxoe and Entexgy (fonnexly Louisiana Powex & Light) for the opexation by Entergy of 
the City's electric system! The agreement provided that Entergy would pay to the City a percentage 
of total revenue collected from the sale of electric service to residential and commercial customers 
within the City; payments not to be less than $700,000 annually. The aforementioned base increases 
by one percent of sales of electric services to residential and commercial customers in excess of 
$10,000,000 hi a calendar yeax. Revenues under this agreement totaled $2,162,656 for the year 
ended Apxil 30,2010, 

PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS 

City of Monroe Sponsored Pension Flans: 

Effective September 1,1983, the membexs of the Bus Drivexs' Pension and Rehef Fund agreed to 
merge with the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS). Since the mergex, 
the Bus Department administrative employees contribute 9.25% of their salary and the City 
contdbutes 7.25 %. The City also reimburses 4% of the bus operators' contributions. The City made 
no contributions to the Bus Drivers' Pension and Relief Fund for the yeax ended April 30, 2010. 

The Monxoe Policemen's Pension and Retief Fund covexs those employees who wexe members of the 
fiind at Septembex 1,1983, and who xetixe prior to the age of 50, Upon reaching their 50th birthday, 
they win no longer receive benefits under the Monroe Policemen's Pension and Retief Fund, but will 
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begin receiving benefits undex the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS). The 
City made no contributions to the Monxoe Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund fox the year ended 
Apxil 30,2010. 

Data concerning the actuarial status of the Policemen's and Bus Drivers' Pension and Rehef Funds is 
not available. The City of Monxoe has nevex xequixed the services of an actuary for these plans nor 
felt the need to determine the actuaxial liability of the plans because state law xequires that the plans 
be funded at minimtim reserve xequixements rather than an actuarially computed reserve based on 
future benefits payable. The two funds had net assets at April 30, 2010, as follows: Pohcemen's, 
$117,320 and Bus" Drivers', $48,099. 

State Sponsored Plans: 

Municipal Employees^ Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS) 

Substantially all city employees, except firemen and poticemen, are members of the MERS, a 
multiple-employer, cost-sharing, public employee retirement system (PERS), controlled and 
administered by a sepaxate boaxd of trustees. The MERS is composed of two distinct plans. Plan A 
and Plan B, with sepaxate assets and benefit pxovisions. Ail City membexs participate in Plan A. 

All permanent employees woxking at least 35 hours per week and elected city officials are ehgible to 
participate in the system. Under the plan pxovisions, a membex who xetixes at or after age 60 with at 
least 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with 25 yeaxs of creditable service, ox at any age 
with at least 30 yeaxs of cxeditable sexvice is entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, 
equal to 3% of the member's fmal compensation multiplied by his yeaxs of cxeditable sexvice. 

However, for those members of the supplemental plan only prior to October 1,1978, the benefit is 
equal to 1% of fmal compensation plus $2 per month fox each yeax of supplemental-plan-only sexvice 
earned prior to October 1,1978, plus 3% of final compensation for each year of service credited after 
October 1, 1979-

Funding Policy. Contributions to the system include one-fourth of one per cent of the taxes shown 
to be collectible by the tax roUs of the parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan 
B based proportionately on the salaries of members on which contributions were made fox the 
pxevious fiscal year. State statute xeqmres covered employees to contribute a pexcentage of their 
salaries to the system. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions 
axe determined by actuarial valuation and axe subject to change each yeax based on Ihe results of the 
valuation fox the prior fiscal yeax. The City's contributions to the MERS for the years ended April 
30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $2,305,662; $2,277,554; and $2,546,969 respectively, equal to tiie 
statutorily required contributions fox each year. 
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The MERS issues an annual, publicly-available financial repoxt that includes fmancial statements 
and requhed supplementaxy infonnation fox the retirement system. The report may be obtained by 
writing the Municipal Employees' Retirement System, 6750 Van Gogh, Baton Rouge, LA 70806 ox 
by calling (225) 925-4810. 

Firefighters' Retirement System (SFRS) 

Effective May 7,1981, the membexs of the Firemen's Pension and Retief Fimd agxeed to mexge with 
the SFRS, a multiple-employex, cost-sharing PERS. Effective Jime 1, 1986, the retirees and 
dependents receiving benefits undex the City plan as of May 7,1981, were transferred to the SFRS. 
As furthex discussed below, the liability to the SFRS was advance refunded by the City duxing fiscal 
1998. 

The plan covers substantially all members of the City's Fire Department. All new employees of the 
department must join this plan with the exception of employees performing duties unrelated to fire 
fighting. Employees with 20 yeaxs ox moxe of service who have attained age 50 or employees with 
12 yeais of service who have attained age 55 or 25 years of service at any age are entitied to annual 
pension benefits equal to 3-1/3% of theh average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive 
months of highest pay multipHed by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. If employees 
-terminate before rendering 12 years oi sexvice, they forfeit the right to receive the portion of their 
accumulated plan benefits attributable to employer contributions. Employees who terminate with at 
least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw then employee contributions 
may xetire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to theix date of termination. 
The system also pxovides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. 

Funding Policy. State statute requhes covexed employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries 
to the system. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions axe 
determined by actuarial valuation and axe subject to change each yeax based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. 

The City's contributions to tiie SFRS for tiae years ended April 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were 
$1,244,994; $1,057,616; $1,206,113 and, respectively, equal to the requhed contributions for each 
yeax. 

The SFRS issues an annual, pubhcly-available fmancial xeport that includes financial statements and 
xequixed supplementaxy information for the rethement system. The report may be obtained by 
writing the Fuefighters' Rethement System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 10, Baton Rouge, LA 
70808-4136 or by callmg (225) 925-4060. 
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Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 

Effective September 1,1983, the members of the City's Pohcemen's Pension and Relief Fund agxeed 
to merge with the MPERS, a multiple-employer, cost-shaxing PERS. The liability to the MPERS 
associated with the mexger was advance refunded by the City during fiscal 1998 as fuxthex discussed 
below-

Ail fall-time police officexs engaged in law enforcement and earning at least $375 pex month 
excluding state supplemental pay, the elected chief of poHce whose salary is at least $ 100 per month, 
and secretaries to the chief of police are eligible to participate in the system. Members who retire at 
or after age 55 with 12 years of cxeditable service, at or after age 50 with 20 years of cxeditable 
service, or at ariy age with 25 years of cxeditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable 
monthly for life, equal to 3-1/3% of the member's average fmal compensation multiplied by Ins yeaxs 
of creditable sexvice, not to exceed 100 pex cent of his avexage final compensation. The system also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by state statute. 

Funding Policy. State statutes require covered employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries 
to the system. As pxovided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employex contributions axe 
determined by actuarial valuation and are .subject to change each yeax based on the xesults of the 
valuation fox the priox fiscal yeax. The City's contributions to the MPERS fox the yeaxs ended April 
30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $1,072,449; $967,634; and $1,416,704, respectively, equal to tiie 
statutorily required contributions for each year. 

The MPERS issues an annual, publicly-available financial report that includes fmancial statements 
and required supplementary information for the retirement system. The report may be obtained by 
writing the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd., Room 305, 
Baton Rouge, LA 70808 or by caUing (225) 929-7411. 

HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 

During the year ended April 30, 2010, the City paid $6,729,692 in expenses in connection with 
providing benefits to a total of 1,064 participants. The cost is broken down as follows: 

Active Employees $ 5,033,399 
Retired Employees 1,683,953 
COBRA 12,340 

Total $ 6,729,692 
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As permitted by Louisiana Revised Statutes, the City provides certain continuing health care and life 
insurance benefits fox certain retired employees through self insurance. Rethed City employees are 
eligible for these benefits if they xeached noxmal xetixement age, as defmed undex the applicable 
retirement system while working fox the City. The City xecogndzes the cost of providing these 
benefits (the City's portion of the premiums) as an expenditure when the monthly pxemiums are due. 
Approximately 227 retirees receive benefits undex this plan. These xetixees xeimbursed the City fox 
$678,517 for fiscal yeax 2010 for their portion of health care benefits. 

10. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description. The City of Monroe's medical benefits are provided through a comprehensive 
medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement 

The employees axe covered by sevexal xetixement systems whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. 
entry) provisions are similar. We have used the following as being representative of that etigibitity: 
30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; or, age 60 and 10 years of service. 
Complete plan provisions are included in the official plan documents. 

Cdiifribution Rates. Employees do not coiitribute to their post employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The City of Monroe paid 60% of the premium 
cost fox rethed employees and their families, and the retirees paid 40% of the premium cost. 
Monthly premium costs for rethed employees are $475 for xetiree only and $895 fox xetiree and 
spouse. 

Fund Policy. Until 2009, the City of Monxoe recognized the cost of providing post-employment 
medical benefits (the City of Monroe's portion of the refhee medical benefit premiums) as an 
expense when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost of the post-employment 
benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 2009, the City of Monroe's portion of health care funding cost 
for retired employees totaled $1,017,766. 

Effective with the Fiscal Year beghming May 1,2008, the City of Monroe implemented Govemiaent 
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Post employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). 

Annual Required Contribution. The City of Monroe's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an 
amoimt actuaxially determined in accoxdance with GASB 45. The Annual Requixed Contribution 
{ARC) is the sum of the Normal Cost plus the contribution to amortize the Actuarial Accrued 
Liabihty (AAL). A level dollar, closed amortization period of 30 yeaxs (the maximum amortization 
period allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used for the post-employment benefits. The total ARC for 
the fiscal year beginning May 1,2009 is $3,641,541, as set foxth below: 
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Medical 
Normal Cost $ 1,127,488 
30-year UAL amortization amount 2,514,053 
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ j,641,541 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation. Thetablebelowshows the City of Monroe's Net Other 
Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation for fiscal year endmg Apxil 30, 2009: 

Medical 
BegmningNet OPEB Obligation 5/12/2008 $ 
Aimual requhed contxibution 3,641,541 
Interest on Net OPEB Obhgation 
ARC Adjustment 806,188 
OPEB Cost 4,447,729 
Contribution 
Current year retiree premium (1,017,776) 
Change in Net OPEB Obligation 3,429,953 
Unfiznded post employment benefits liability - May 1 1,622,652 

Ending Net OPEB Obligation 4/30/2010 $ 5,052,605 

The following table shows the City of Monroe's annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost, 
percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) tiabihty; 

Post 
Employment 

Benefit 
Medical 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
April 30,2010 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 
$ 3,641,541 

Percentage 
of Annual 

Cost 
Contributed 

27.95% 

Net 
OPEB 

Obligation 
$ 5,052,605 

Funded Status and Fun ding Progress. In tiie fiscal yeax endmg April 30,2010, the City of Monxoe 
made no contributions to its post employment benefits plaxL The plan was not funded at all, has no 
assets, and hence has a flmded ratio of zero. As of May 1, 2008, the first and most recent actuarial 
valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liabfiity (AAL) was $42,612,377, which is defined as that portion, 
as determined by a particulai actuarial cost method (the City of Monroe uses the Unit Cxedit Cost 
Method), of the actuarial pxesent value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not 
pxovided by nomaal cost. Since the plan was not funded in fiscal years 2009 or 2010, the entixe 
actuarial accxued habihty of $42,612,377 is unfunded. 
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Medical 
Actuarial Accmed Liability (AAL) $ 42,612,377 
Actuaxial Value of Plan Assets 0% 

Unfunded Act. Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 42,612,377 
Funded Ratio (Act. Val. Assets/AAL) 0% 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 34,098,928 
UALL as a percentage of covered payroll 8 0% 

Actuarial Metho4s and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of 
repoxted amounts and assumptions about the pxobability of events fax into the future. The actuaxial 
valuation fox post employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions xegarding (1) turnover 
xate; (2) retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate 
(investment return assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, current, or fiiture 
years of service by employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as 
actual results axe compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the' terms of'the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City of Momoe and its employee plan members) at 
the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the City of Monxoe and its plan 
members to that point The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not exphcitly 
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual fanding linaitations on the pattern of cost 
shEGiing between the City of Monroe and plan members in the future. Consistent with the long-term 
pexspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques 
that are designed to reduce shoxt-term volatility in actuarial habilities and the actuarial value of 
assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method. The actuarial cost method determines, in a systematic way, the incidence 
of plan sponsor contributions required to pxovide plan benefits. It also determines how actuarial 
gains and losses axe xecognized in OPEB costs. These gains and losses result fiom the difference 
between the actual experience under the plan and what was anticipated by the actuarial assumptions. 

The ARC is determined using the Unit Credit Cost Method. The employer portion of the cost for 
retiree medical care in each fiiture year is determined by projecting the current cost levels using the 
healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to the valuation date using the other 
described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment return assumption (discoxmt 
rate), mortality, and turnover. 
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Actuarial liabilities and comparative costs were computed using the following cost components: 

1. The normal cost is the actuarial present value of benefits allocated to the evaluation 
yeax. 

2. The actuaxial accrued liability is the actuarial pxesent value of benefits accrued as of the 
valuation date. 

3. Valuation assets axe equal to the market value of assets as of the valuation date, if any. 

4. Unfunded actuaxial accxued liability is the difiexence between the actuaxial accxued 
habihty and the valuation assets. It is amortized over the maximum permissible period 
undex GASB 45 of 30 yeaxs. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets. Since this is the fkst actuaxial valuation, there are not any assets. It 
is anticipated that in future valuations a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards 
Board ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45. 

Turnover Rate. An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as descxibed by 
administiative staS"has been used. The xates, when applied to the active employee census, pxoduce 
an annual turnover of approximately 13%. The rates for each age axe below: 

Percent 
Age Tuxnovex 
18-25 20.0% 
26-40 15.0% 
41-54 12.0% • 
55+ 8.0% 

Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate). GASB Statement 45 states that the investment 
xetum assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the hivestments that are 
expected to be used to fmance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based on 
the assumption that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual mvestment return has been used in this 
valuation. This is a conservative estimate of the expected long term return of a balanced and 
conservative mvestment portfolio under professional management 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate. The expected rate of increase ha medical cost is based on 
projections performed by the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services 
as published in National Health Care Expenditures Projections; 2003 to 2013, Table 3: National 
Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution and Avexage Annual 
Pexcent Change by Souxce of Funds: Selected Calendax Yeaxs 1990-2013, xeleased in January, 2004 
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by the Health Care Financing Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and Local" rates for 2008 
through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 graduated down to an ultimate 
annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later. 

Mortality Rate. The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a 
fixed blend of 50%o of the unloaded male mortality rate and 50%o of the urdoaded female mortality 
rates, was used. This is the mortality table which the Intemal Revenue Service requhes to be used in 
determining the value of accrued benefits in defmed benefit pension plans. Since GASB 45 requires 
the use of "unblended" rates, we have used the 94GARmortahty table described above to "unblend" 
the rates so as to reproduce the composite blended xate ovexall as the xate stxuctuxe to calculate the 
actuarial valuation xesults fox life insurance. 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits. The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the 
portion of the pxemium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employex fox each xetixee and 
has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. 
The City pays 60%) of the retiree premiums. Those premiums are based on the blended active/retired 
rate before Medicare eligibility and an unblended rate after Medicare eligibitity (age 65). Since 
GASB 45 mandates that "unblended" rates applicable to the coverage provided to retirees be used, 
we have estunated the "unblended" rates for retirees before Medicare eligibility. It has been assumed 
that the total retixee rate before Medicare eligibifity is 130% of the blended active/retired rate, with 
the employer assumed to pay the difference between that unblended rate and the employee 
contribution of 40% of the blended rate. 

11. LEASES 

At April 30, 2010, the City was obligated under operating lease agreements covering computer 
equipment and various other items of equipment. The original fives of the leases range up to ^ve 
yeaxs with options to renew some leases for one to five years. The City made lease payments of 
approximately $574,707 during the year ended April 30,2010. The foUowdng is a schedule of fiituxe 
minimum lease payments under operating leases as of April 30, 2010. 

Years Ended Future Minimum 
April 30: Lease Payments 
2011 $ 152,189 
2012 138,062 
2013 2,421 

Total $ 292,672 
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In fiscal 2006, the City entered into a capital lease obhgation for the purchase of an energy system 
that is being utilized in over 40 City-owned buildings. The original amount of the obhgation was 
$2,967,113 and beaxs interest at 4.75% to 5.59%. 

Future Minimum 
Fiscal Years Ended April 30j Lease Payments 

2011 $ 289,359 

2012 284,806 

2013 261,815 

2014 243,318 

2015 247,800 

2016-2020 1,307,634 

2021 224,540 

2,859,272 

Less: Amounts representing Interest (711,333) 
Present Value of Future Minimum 

Lease Payments $ 2,147,939 

12. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of long-term obhgation transactions of the City of Monroe for the year 
ended April 30, 2010; 

Long-Term Proprietary 
Obligations Funds Total 

Long-term obligations. May 1,2009 $ 168,779,230 $ 3,324,071 •$ 172,103,301 
Additions 33,196,519 676,807 33,873,326 
Retirements (10,752,230) (815,187) (11,567,417) 
Long-term obligations, April 30,2010 $ 191,223,519 $ 3,185,691 $ 194,409,210 
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Long-term obligations outstanding at April 30, 2010, are comprised of the following: 

reneral Long-Term Obligations 

Tax Increment Bonds 
Tower Drive 

Certificates of Indebtedness 
Taxable Refundmg Certificates 

(Civic Center Roof) 

Sales Tax Bonds 
Series 2002 (Streets/Sewer) 
Series 2002A (Fire/Dramage) 
Series 2003 (Stxeets) 
Series 2006 (DHH) (Water) 

Total sales tax bonds 

Refunding Bonds 

Issue 

2007 

2004C 

2002 
2002A 

2003 
2006 

Maturity 
Date 

03/01/25 

10/01/14 

07/01/26 
07/01/27 
07/01/27 
07/01/28 

Interest 
Rate 

4.25-5.00 

3.75 

4.70-7.00 
4.625-4,80 
3.25-5.50 

3.45 

Balance 
Outstanding 

$10,185,000 

1,245,000 

11,700,000 
14,195,000 
18,845,000 
2.895,000 

. 47,635,000 

Series 1998 A 
Series 2007A 
Deferxed amount of refunding 
Series 2008 1-20 Development 
Deferred amount of refunding 

Total refunding bonds 

Utilitv Revenue Bonds 
Series 2001 (DEQ) (Sewex) 
Series 2003 (DEQ) (Sewex) 
Series 2005 (DEQ) 
Series 2008 (DEQ) 

Total utiHty xevenue bonds 

Airport Revenue Bonds 
Series 2009 Airport Bonds 

Total airport revenue bonds 

1998 
2007 
2007 
2008 
2008 

2001 
2003 
2005 
2008 

03/01/13 
07/01/26 

03/01/25 

06/30/23 
06/01/23 
70/01/27 
07/01/30 

5.05 
4.002 

4.00-5.50 

3.95 
3.95 
3.95 
.095 

1,335,000 
27,040,000 

(645,314) 
23,560,000 
ri ,044,839) 
50,244,847 

18,772,537 
7,760,000 
8,380,800 
5,379,210 

2009 02/01/39 3.00-5.5 

40,292,547 

18,940.000 
18,940,000 
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General Long-Term Obligations (cont'd) 

Other 
Claims and Judgments Payable 
Capital Lease (See Note 10) 
Notes Payable 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 
Other post employment benefits 
Total other 

Total general long-term obligations 

Issue 

None 
2000 
2007 
None 
None 

Maturity 
Date 

None 
04/30/21 
11/15/12 

None 
None 

Interest 
Rate 

None 
5.70 
3.88 
None 
None 

Balance 
Outstandme: 

$7,828,227 
2,147,939 
1,718,818 
5,933,536 
5,062.605 

22,681.125 

$19L223,51? 

Proprietary Funds 

Utilitv Revenue Bonds-
Series 2001(pEQ) (Sewer) 

Otiier 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 

2001 

None 

6/01/22 

None 

3.95 

None 

$2,192,463 

993,228 

Total proprietary funds 

Long-Term Obhgation 
General obligation bonds: 

Refiindmg Bonds, 2003 
(City Court and Jail Improvements) 

Tax increment bonds: 
Tower Drive 
1-20 Development 

Certificates of indebtedness: 
Taxable Refunding Certificates 
(Civic Center Roof) 

Sales taz bonds: 
2002 Series (Sewer and Streets) 
2002A Series (Fire and Drainage) 
2003 Series (Streets) 
2006 Series 

3: 3.185.691 

Paving Fuiid 

City Court and Jail Improvements Debt Service Fund 

Tower Drive Debt Service Fund 
1-20 Debt Sexvice Fund 

General Fund 

Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
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Long-Term Obligation Paving Fund 

Refunding Bonds: 
Series 1998A (Fhe and Police Pension) 
Series 2007A 
Series 2208 (1-20 Development) 

Utility revenue bonds: 
Series 2001 (DEQ) 
Series 2003 (DEC )̂ 
Series 2005 (DEQ) 
Series 2008 (DEQ) 

Airport revenue bonds: 
Series 2009 Airport Bonds 

Capital Lease Obligations: 
Equipment 

General Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
1-20 Debt Service Fund 

Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Debt Service Fund 

Airport Bond Debt Service Fund 

General Fund 

Notes Payable 
Equipment 

Utility Revenue Bonds: 
Series 2001 (DEQ Sewer) 

General Fund 

Sewer Enterprise Fund 

The amount recorded as claims and judgments payable in the General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group is the City's habihty for claims that are not expected to be paid with available 
xesouxces at yeax-end. Expendituxes fox claims and judgments payable are recognized in the General 
Fund when paid. Ordy those expenditures which are included in the City's legally adopted budget 
will be paid. 

The debt service xequhements to amoxtize all bonds, cextificates and othex long-texm obligations 
(other than accrued vacation and sick pay, claims and judgments, capital lease obhgations, other post 
employment benefits, and deferxed amoimt of xefunding) outstanding at April 30, 2010, including 
interest payments of $78,530,453 are as follows: 
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Year Ended 
April 30, 

2010 
2on 
2012 
2013 
2014 
201S 

2016-2020 
2021-2025 
2026-2030 
2031-2035 

Total 

G.O. . Bonds 
CerLof Indebt. 

J 341,688 J 

S 

340.625 
339,188 
342.375 

-
-
-
-
• 
-

]>3,876 S 

Revenue 
Bonds 
S,15g,688 S 
5.181.816 
5.198.662 
5.20g,139 
5,242,190 

26,164.471 
24,769,612 
18,251,408 
7.013,124 
4^31,854 

106,419,964 S 

Tax 
Increment 

1,151,658 J 
1.142,962 
1,127.575 
1,114,280 
1,096.108 
5 J 96.239 
4.874.638 

-
-
-

__15.703,460^ S_ 

DEQ 
Revolving Loan 

4.131,995 S 
4,139.087 
4.131.468 
4,130,469 
4,135,992 

I9,2S3;222 
14370,747 

450,060 

-
-

54,773,040 % 

Other 
5.909,818 S 
5.567.065 
5.395.159 
4,537.069 
4,533,906 

22,755,912 
22,354.968 
3,360.044 

-
-

74.413,941 S 

Total 
]6,693.g47 
16.371,555 
16,192.052 
15.332,332 
15.008.196 
73,399,844 
66369.965 
22,061.512 

7.013,124 
4,231,854 

252,674,281 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and axe secured by the full faith and credit of the 
City. These bonds generally mature in 2010. Revenue bonds are secured by pledged income 
derived from the assets acquired or constructed with bond fimds. Certificates of indebtedness are 
secured by a pledge of the general credit of the City. The Tax Increment bonds are secured solely 
fiom the incremental tax revenues fiom the respective economic development districts. 

Airport Revenue Bonds 

On August 14, 2009, the City issued $19,250,000 of Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, the 
proceeds of which axe to be used fox the purpose of financing the acquisition, construction and 
equipping of inaprovements of the Monroe Regional Airport Terminal, fiindmg a debt service reserve 
hind, and paying the costs of issuance of the bonds. 

The bonds will be paid from the net revenues, which consists of all gross income and revenue 
accrued by the city from the ownership, lease or operation of the airport, mcluding aixpoxt revenues 
net of operation and maintenance expenses; the pxoceeds of any passenger facihty charge; the 
pxoceeds of any customer facihty charge; and the proceeds of the City's 10 year, 1.00 mill property 
tax for the purpose of paying for construction ox enhancements of the airpoxt, but excluding any gifts, 
grants or other amounts the use of which is restricted by the donor or gxantox ox by the operation of 
law ox regulatioti, and to the extent thexe is a shortfall, for lawfiiUy available funds, as defined herein. 

The bonds will bear interest at rates of 3.00% to 5.50% and will mature on February 1, 2039. 
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15. LITIGATION AND CONTINGENCIES 

Various lawsuits axe pending against the City of Monroe. Attorneys, of the City are of the opinion 
that any judgment rendered in favor of the plaintiff will not materially affect the fmancial position of 
the City at April 30, 2010. However, we note the following cases: 

. The City is a defendant in tv;o sepaxate suits involving the death of a citizen during a conhrontation 
with Monroe City Police. Both suits have been filed on behalf of the person's adult and minor 
childxen. Counsel fox the City beheves thexe will be no liability to the City as axesult of these suits. 

In addition, the City is a party to vaxious suits involving use of excessive foxce by police officexs, 
accidents hivolving City vehicles and/ox pxoperty and workman's compensation and city 
employer/employee relations. The City is unable to make an estimate of the possible habihty, if any, 
of these matters at the current time. 

The City is also a defendant in a case involving the death of a citizen duxing an automobile accident 
with a City vehicle opexated by an employee within the course and scope of his employment. 
Subsequent to year end, this case was settled for $300,000. This Hability is not recoxded in the 
financial statements as of April 30,2010. 

Another suit involves the death of an employee as a result of an automobile accident that took place 
while he was on duty. The legal counsel for the City believes that the City could possibly be liable 
for a portion of the hospital bills incurxed. 

16. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 

The City of Monroe offexs its employees deferxed compensation plans created in accordance with 
Intemal Revenue Code Section 457, as amended. The plans, available to all employees, permit them 
to defer a portion of their salaries rmtil future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The City 
does not make any contributions to the plans. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees imtil termination, retirement or unforeseeable emergency. Deferred compensation is 
available to employees' beneficiaries in case of death. In accordance with the amended provisions of 
Code Section 4 57, all amounts deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with those 
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are solely the property and 
rights of the participants and their beneficiaries. As requhed by the amended Code Section 457, the 
City established custodial accounts with a thixd party administrator who will hold the assets and 
income of the plans. 

Since the assets of the plans are held in a custodial account with a third-party administrator, the 
assets and habihties are not presented in the City's financial statements in accordance with GASB 
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Assets with a fan market value of Sl,656,814 are held by Public Employees Benefit Services 
Corporation, a deferred compensation center, and assets with a fair market value of $207,777 are 
held by ICMA under agreement with the City. 

17. ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

Certain City employees in the City Marshal's office, the Monroe Police Department and the Monxoe 
Fire Department receive supplemental pay from the state of Louisiana. In accoxdance with GASB 
Statement No.24, the City has xecoxded revenues and expenditures for these payments in the Genexal 
Fund. Revenues under this arrangement totaled $2,186,824 and the related expenditures are as 
follows: 

Marshal/Deputy Maxshal S 94,666 
Monxoe Police Department 991,173 
Monroe Fhe Department 1,100,985 

Total $ 2,186,824 

18. RISK FINANCING ACTTVITIES 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. There were no major changes in insurance 
coverage for the year ended April 30, 2010. Certain risks of loss, such as suxety bonding, transit 
liability and indemnity, and activities relating to the operations of Chennault Park, the Monroe Civic 
Center, Louisiana Pizrchase Gardens and Zoo and Monroe Regional Airport are insured through 
puxchase of commexcial Losuxance with deductibles firom $0 to $25,000 and covexage limits from 
$1,000 (surety bonds) to $64,000,000 (buildhigs and contents). Other risks of loss, includmg fleet 
comprehensive and liabihty, long-term disability and comprehensive general liability, are entirely 
self-iosuxed. Workers compensation losses are self insured up to $250,000 per occurrence, with 
excess loss policies in force for claims in excess of the self insured retention. There were no 
settlements that exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years. All of the foregoing risk 
financing activities are accoimted for in the governmental and proprietary flmd types. Long-term 
habilities that are covered by structured settlements which are not expected to be hquidated with 
expendable available financial resources in the governmental funds have been recorded in the 
General Long-term Obligations Account Group at estimated pxesent value. Othex long-texm claims 
and judgments payable xecoxded in the Genexal Long-term Obhgations Account Group, primarily 
disability and workers' compensation claims, axe xecoxded using actuarial methods. Changes tn the 
claims hability fox the year ended April 30, 2010, axe as follows: 
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Balance, April 30,2009 $ 7,303,139 
Current yeax claims and changes in estimates 612,566 
Claims paid (87,478) 
Balance, April 30,2010 $ 7,828,227 

Included in current yeax claims and changes in estimates axe amounts xelated to woxkexs' 
compensation claims for incuxxed but not xepoxted claims (IBNR). IBNR claims include known loss 
events which are expected to be presented as claims, unknown loss events that are expected to 
become claims and expected future developments on claims aheady reported. Actuarial methods 
were employed to determine the IBNR reserve at April 30, 2010, which was calculated to be 
approximately $2 million and covexs claim yeaxs since April 30, 1979. 

19. RESTATEMENTS 

Beghming net assets of the governmental activities are being restated to reflect a decrease of 
$1,437,281. This is due to a correction of a prior year calculation error of Bond Issue Costs 
($1,058,851) and the correction of a prior year overstatement of receivables and revenue of the 
Kansas Lane Cdnnector Capital Project Fund ($378,430). 

20. PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE-MONROE REGIONAL AIRPORT 

On January 23, 2003, the Monroe Regional Airport (Airport) received approval from the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) to impose a $4.50 passenger facihty charge (PFC) in accordance 
with Section 158.29 of the FAA Regulations (Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, Paxt 158). On 
Decembex 20, 2005, the Airport received approval to continue collecting the charge through 
September 1, 2008. On Septembex 8, 2008, approval was given by the FAA to collect the chaxge 
commencingNovembex 1,2008 through June 1,2036. 

FAA regulations requhe that PFC revenues be recognized and reported as non-operatuig revenues in 
the yeax the fees axe xemitted by the aii caxriexs (cash basis of accounting). Likewise, payments to 
vendoxs axe also xepoxted when disbixrsed, not when incurred. However, for financial reporting 
purposes, GAAP requhes that these revenues and expenses be recorded on the modified accrual basis 
of accounting. 

FAA regulations also requhe certain financial statement disclosures with xegaxd to passengex facility 
charges. Any PFC revenue received, but not yet spent^ along with intexest income, is classified as 
xestricted net assets on the Statement of Net Assets. 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes To The Financial Statements 
As of And For The Year Ended April 30, 2010 

The FAA approved a total collection of $1,134,672, from April 1,2003 until January 31, 2006 for 
three approved projects. On December 20,2005, the FAA approved collections of $720,000 for one 
additional project. These projects as well as the amounts disbursed and the remaining dollars 
available are as follows: Two additional projects were approved September, 8 2008 totaling 
$16,400,000.00. 

Project 
Description ^ ^ _ _ Amount Disbursements Available 

Aixcxaft loading equipment impxovement $ 
PFC application pxofessional fees 
Rehabilitate airfield hghting 
Passenger terminal scoping and planning study 
New Passenger Terminal Building 
Administrative Costs (Professional Fees) 

Total $ 

On September 15,2009 the following changes occurred: 

• Application O2-0LC~00-MLU was xeduced from $720,000.00 to $413,444.00 due to 
completion of project on Maxch 31,2009. 

• Apphcation 03-Ol-C-Ol-MLU-OOl was reduced from $641,748 to $504,335 due to 
completion of project on Febxuary 1,2005. 

• Apphcation 03-01-C-01-MLU-003 was xeduced from $452,224 to $401,025 due to 
completion of pxoject on January 1,2004. 

Since the inception of the PFC, the Airport has recoxded the following revenues / receipts and 
expenses / disbursements through fiscal year 2010 resulting in a restriction of net assets from 
passenger facility charges as follows: 

PFC revenues / receipts $ 
Intexest earnings 

Total xevenues / receipts 
Expenses / disbursements for PFC projects 
Net PFC cash, April 30,2010 
Net assets restricted for PFC, April 30, 2010 $ 

Any remaining funds after the completion of the projects will xequixe a plan for the use of this 
revenue be submitted to the FAA for review and concurience. 

Accxual Basis 
2,542,453 

48.067 
2,590,520 

(2,010,079) 

580,441 

$ 

$ 

Cash Basis 
2,509,097 

48,067 
2,557,164 
2,044,192 

512,972 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Notes To The Financial Statements 
As of And For The Year Ended April 30, 2010 

21. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On June 23,2010, after the City's fiscal yeax end of April 3 0,2010, two City of Monroe councilmen 
wexe indicted on federal racketeering/bribery under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt 
Organizations Act and on extortion charges under the Hobbs Act. One coxmcilman was charged with 
five acts of xacketeering for a total of $6,300 in bribes. The other councilman was charged with four 
acts of racketeering for a total of $ 1,437 in bribes and a reduced purchase price fox some land. Both 
councilmen are charged with one count each of extoxtion under the Hobbs Act. Although the 
outcome of these indictments is not presently determinable, management is of the opinion that 
regardless of the outcome there will be no material effect on the fmancial statements of the City. 

67 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
(PART B) 



O r y OF MONROE 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEMOrrURES AND CHANCES 
IN FUND BAIANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL30, IfllO 
(UnBudilcd) 

REVENUES 

Ciaie:i) properly IKW 
197̂  R«CMlioti»] miinleoa«:e I»x«l 
197̂  PoNic wftly l*\Bi 
\91* Drswitelivei 
Sired MunicnanccTiK 
CapiltJ impioveminl 1i\ 
Police (fepwimEM lax 
FIrcdrptAroKHiix 
Betrtto; 
Ailj\MSi!;aw6 PiopcKj 
Ctncril n t a uxci 

LiquW Liccmei 

Vidbo Btngo Ucente 

Stwttf ptmuU 
Mombini permiiE 

Gnpcrmiit 
Hc«I md ui condiiiHiinc permu 
Sound PeninU 
Mobita ii£n pcnnlu 
OJTPramStsn 
Ci'I'wVDwwtc Projcn PiTOiii 
Fraidwefas 
Simt grmM: - Suppltjnw^i! P^ 
Sipni Lifht Rcimtiun«nienl 
Krcp toviEuna Beuiiful 
S«]K VOi conunution - School Boird 
S»Ja UK comrotwion - Wen Monroo 
SiJet ux eommrsrioo • Police Juiy 
Sales Ux ccmminlM) • 5lerlin|tDn 
Sales Ux comnifulon - Riclnvood 
S»it» ux coTTunhiion - Hundln 
SBJ» OX commiuiOD - fire 
Sain UX cotnrmulDB - PoiKe 
Stia Ux commJBkw - Ootchiu P»Jrii Shtrifft Office 
SaJti UX ccrrmunin - HoieUMQlct 
CtTf t&Dlutiiin icTvice 
Reoulion depininent levcnu* 
HIDTA 
Loui^*ni Hî hwiy Safety 
Federal Direct Nw> Caircory 
AWtA Copi Hirinj 
Fedtral Indircd Non Category' 

Sula Gf am* 
NSFFea 
Orwt oiTtJnj few 
Dsatililiwi 
Video Binjo 
Oiy Court civd feat 
Community poUtiii ft« 
AppeEfUwe & luirwdef Tee 
Zownt income 
Pirtioa Meteti 
Enicigy Omchlie Tcet 
CdTiEterrltb 
Gtilfcwrtefets 
Atnennn Pm1 Systetn Fees (BeJISouth ecmminiou) 
MiaeDinwtB bieome 
Postage 
Lcji) & (rthtr >*roretrion»J 
faJte fllNim find 
Firereporti 
CopyCJan* 
CilyCowlCoe 
EnvWowMMaJ Coun 
Putinffna 
Tictri review feo 
pmrtsnc pennil jilet 
DWI Prob Kn 
RenUl income 
CoTftribuliwii & DoreHioot 
Uiieieit incomo 
Ro^vlly income 
Corammiow 
KVDcmaliDiu 
TuHiotv Income 
DomiiDTij ifciicnfled MPD 
MunidpJ folf courao f«ot 
Cidi ovn/slvn 
Penali)' End iniefcsi 
Potke mjfcdtaneoM 

Tol»l tovenuttj 

Budietcd Amounli 

Drie'mi] 

; 3,931,e24 S 
691,3 n 

389.715 
« ) , 7 I 6 

1^79,672 

S92,(C2 
5W,032 

72,215 
33.596 

30.7I3.86J 

tSM* 
i.-di.too 

1.500 
14.000 
« ,KW 
55.000 , 

JMOO 
12,400 
17.000 

MO 

780,710 
2,«&,450 

183,000 

381.700 

51.000 

37,800 
2.200 

i !0 
M.ISO 
22 . ! M 

32,tJ4 
18^35 

4,000 
2.993.000 

46.194 

42.000 
25,000 

17,400 
77,500 

100,000 
180,000 

140,000 
60,000 

Vifill 

1300.000 
21,7DO 

420.466 
18^40 

7,425 
85.475 

2c.roo 

700.000 

7 1 ^ 0 
1,320 

2M1 
2,000 

J6S.W0 

2.200 
220.725 

7,230 

I S , « » 

34.515 
H.500 

53.677.S51 

FTfiil 

4.127.560 S 

727,893 
410,402 
507,208 

49 
1.279.672 

592,032 
M2.0J2 

72.215 
20,000 

31,500,000 
79.4*5 

2.411,100 
3.050 

90.500 
29,600 
23,910 
32,100 
12,500 
7,700 

25 
55 

175 
1.175 

8O0.0O0 
2,«)&,'SS0 

183.000 

381.700 

51.0D0 
37.800 

2JD0 

ISO 
n . ) 6 0 

22,61J 
22.8)4 

1 8 ^ 5 
4.000 

2,993,000 
42.765 

102.958 
27J13 

37J.SS3 
161.104 

K7.542 

Ki,oao 
) 7.400 

J29.J00 

K9,D6(f 
1,066.000 

lU.OOO 
100.000 
60,000 

Sl.414 
16 

I.WS.OOO 
l , « 0 

204. J 2S 
15.000 

7,425 
IS .475 
16.000 

170 
1,974 

700.000 
SOO 

62.850 

325 
230 

2,602 
) « I . B 2 

5,700 

100.000 

2.400 
1,412 

32.420 
16.000 

7.525 
15.600 

24.315 

75,000 
56.041,709 

Actual 
^mounl i 

4,175,0*3 S 

736,551 
415.290 
513.236 

49 
IJ74.P77 

5U.4Sfi 
588,482 

74,273 
22,3S6 

31.187,986 
80.533 

2.428.270 
4,111 

78.382 
31.009 
74.401 
27.479 
J 1.584 
12,056 

25 

70 
175 

1.175 

812,894 
2,)K,B24 

183,000 
500 

401.S5I 

51.000 
37.B00 

2.03B 
180 

5i;!04 
22,618 
22,618 

15,412 
4.000 

3,069,596 

45;U3 
63,072 
35,(34 

195,653 
176.470 
91.200 

259.538 
356,62? 

18,618 
130,6)5 
93.162 

1.098,421 
185.453 
106.770 
57,910 
63.S42 

16 
1.997,1P) 

2,650 
215.421 

14.735 
398 

13,599 
112.751 

15,325 
209 

2.39S 

692,894 
975 

57,081 
405 

3.364 
176,999 

5,700 
56.009 

2,798 
1,563 

13,P63 
16.750 
17,585 

15,500 
(l.WJJ) 

H I 69 
79,9SS 

56.443.373 

Variance wJlh 
Finit Budtet-

Porittve 

(NcEifive) 

47,413 

E.658 
4,888 

6,028 

(4.695) 

0 > W ) 
(3.550) 
2.058 
2.366 

387.986 

1,050 

17.170 
1.061 

(12,IU> 
1.409 

10,491 
tA.621) 

C9)S} 
4,356 

15 

32,894 

U l 9,526) 

500 

20,151 

(162) 

4,144 
(196) 

(196) 
(3.123) 

76,596 
2,468 

(39,886) 
8.621 

(176,000) 
l,36< 

91,200 
1.996 

(6.2S3) 

1,218 

1.1)5 
4.102 

32.428 
5.453 
6,770 

(2.090) 
12.058 

62.191 
i.090 

11,293 
(265) 
398 

6,174 
31.276 

(675) 
39 

424 

aios) 
)75 

(5.769) 
80 

(J30> 
762 

15,267 

(43.991) 

398 

150 
08,457) 

750 
10.060 

(100) 
0.003) 
9.654 
455S 

401.564 
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C I T Y O F M O N R O E 

G E N E R A L F U N D 

S T A T E M E N T O F R E V E N U E S , E X P E N D I T U R E S A N D C H A N C E S 

IN FUND B A L A N C E S - B U D G E T A N D A C T U A L 

F O R T H E Y E A R E N D E D A P R I L 5 0 . 1 0 1 0 

(Una u (filed) 

Variance wilh 
Final Bodfct ' 

EXPENDfTORES 
Cufienl 

LeBiihlivfl diuijion - eoundl snd tl»R" 
iu&at \ divnion 
Lei;i) divjpon 
Executive diviiion - chief t tecudue t i \ i lUfT 
Adminifiriiion diviiien 
Polico ifiviiion 
FiiE (fiviiion 
Public worliE divi*ion 
Culture & leciea^on 

Plmninu uid urbm devtIopmerH diviBon 
Debt Service 

Guietaj ifrtewil cxpente 
Capita] Icjses 
Ovtc Center Roof 
Cfatmi and jwiiirntMs 

Capiii) Expefufiiufei 

Total cxpeodimrec 

EXCltSS O F REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
S*h of n t c t t 
l i au twt tp to tewl* 

Total 
Trimfeti irt 

Ciphal Inffiimicture 
Monroe RepooBl Airport 

Total tramfert in 
T n m f a n ouC 

pEisonw housins 
Pofieo >fld Fire peraJon 
Louiiieia FurcWe Gvdcns mdZoQ 
l^fonroe Traniil Syjlem 
UvtMock Arena 
Cenin) Sliop and W»fAoujtt 

Dellrfcsl 
C«plt»l 
Rep^r tnd Muntenaiwx 
Debt Service 
Video blF>j;0 fovenue to capilkl 
Video binco n y o n u w iniutance 
C»ipil»S yo^od fundi 
Eicnomic DsveJopmcirt 

Tola) trwrtfoi oui 

Tot»1 other (inancins Hnjtcei (ui a ) 

EXCESS OP REVENUES AND OTSHR F I N A N Q N C 
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND 
OTHER FINANCINC USES 

PTJND BALANCE, BECINNIHC OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END O F YEAR 

OritinM 

3 17.861 
2,304,535 

662.2SS 
836,070 

7.249.169 
12.311,202 
11.817.915 
8.797,231 
2.983,010 

882.572 

lOO.OOO 
285.274 
280,000 
200,000 

UW.4&5 
50,407.4i4 

3.270.017 

706,344 
70.796 

7TJ.140 

( « l . i l l j 
(X27.298> 

( « . 2 i 7 ) 
(1.677,603) 

(2,500) 
P06, ia3) 

(45.337) 

(7.668) 
(400,000) 
(400.000) 

(4,(M 7,227) 

(3,270,017) 

I1 ,8MJ27 

S n ,8W.327 S 

Final 

316,890 
2.301. J 57 

682.629 
8Sl,8B4 

7.792,650 
12.484,833 
11,957.915 

9,105,561 
1.972,6)0 

882,993 

100,000 

285,274 
230,000 
200,000 

1,806.051 
52.030.457 

4.011,252 

262.913 

262.913 

706.895 
?3.69l 

800,593 

(570.137) 
(827.291) 

(27,447) 
(1,000,000) 

(2.500) 

iim*9) 
(131.175) 

(1,000.000) 

(30,011) 
(533,000) 

(500,000) 

(t,»lV?41 

(3.7S0.BIS) 

260,434 

12.276,526 

12J36.960 J 

Actual 
AmoiinU 

296.371 
2,200,800 

674.559 
TBQ.624 

7,223,678 
)2,S34J0I 
12,013.973 
9.139.5)4 
2,754.580 

183.908 

57,188 
285,274 
280,000 
!7.47S 

1)6.611 
50.028.879 

6.4M.494 

162484 
100.000 
162.584 

1.050.77) 
1,050.771 

(654.133) 
(118.4)6) 
(201.470) 

(1,771.633) 

( 3 ^ 4 ) 
(359.534) 

(1.600,000) 
{414.2S7) 

(23.563) 
(549J14) 

{266,135) 
(500.000) 

f7J21.5891 

f5.ll5.234) 

599,260 

J2J76,526 

)2,B75.7S6 S 

Pi>iitive 
(Nesniivc) 

20,5)9 
100,357 

8,070 
71,260 

568.982 
(49,468) 
(46,058) 

(33,973) 
211.030 

(915) 

42.(12 

112,522 
*B5,440 

2.001,576 

2,403.242 

(329) 
lOO.OOO 
99.67) 

(706.895) 
957.073 
250.178 

(83,996) 
1.882 

(180,623) 
(771,633) 

(734) 
()67.1E5) 

131,175 
(600.000) 
(474.257) 

6,455 
(16,214) 

(266,135) 

(2,414^651 

(2.064.416) 

338.826 

338.82S 
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CITY O F M O N R O E 

Mfonroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Revenues , Expendi tures and Changes 

in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

Capital In f ras t ruc tu re Special Revenue Fund 

For the Year Ended Apri l 30, 2010 

(Unaudi ted) 

Variance wi(h 
Final Budget-

RJEVENUES 
Sales Tax -Slreet Improvement 
Interest income 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cunrent 

Public worics 

Tolal expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original 

13,065,000 $ 
175,000 

13.240,000 

1,607,209 

1,607,209 

n.632,791 

Final 

13,065,000 $ 
175.000 

13,240,000 

1.593,006 

1.593,006 

11,646,994 

Actual 
Amounts 

13.380.893 $ 
43,375 

13,424,268 

728.828 

728,828 

12,695,440 

Positive 
(Negative) 

315.893 
(131,625) 

184,268 

864.178 

864.178 

1.048,446 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Trans fear In 
Transfers Out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

EXCESS (DEFlCieNC\') OF REVEIWES OVER 
EXPENDITURJES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

1,000,000 1,000,000 
(]0>884,986) (10,884,986) (10,483.278) 
(10,884,986) (9.884,986) (9,483>278) 

(747.805) (1,762,008) 3,212,162 

U,935,052 6.898,655 14.601,350 

401.708 
401,708 

1,450.154 

£ 11.187.247 S 7,136,647 $ 17,813,512 $ 10,676,865 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

April 30, 2010 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid expenses & other assets, net 

Special Revenue 
Totals 

$ 10.177.651 
997,409 

1,497.668 
591,606 

Debt Service 
Totals 

S 5.540,528 
993.516 

Capital Projects 
Totals 

$ 22,699,559 
356.661 

1.587,151 

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental Funds 

S 38,417,738 
2,347,586 
3.084,819 

591,606 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities 
Accounts and retaJnage payable 
Due to other fiinds 
Deferred revenue 
Other current liabilities 

TotaJ Liabilities 

Fund Balances 
Reserved for 
Debt service 
Capital improvements 
Unreserved 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

13.264,334 $ 6.534,044 $ 24,643,371 

360,551 
687,452 

7,400 
U.667 

1,067.070 

12,197,264 

12,197.264 

13.922 

13.922 

6,520,122 

6.520,122 

$ 13,264,334 $ 6,534.044 

1.499,663 

23,143,708 

23,143,708 

24,643.371 

44,441,749 

855.260 
626,040 

18,363 

$ 1.215,811 
1,313,492 

21.322 
30.030 

2,580.655 

6.520.122 
23,143,708 
12.197,264 

44,441,749 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe. Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Special Debt Service 

Revenue Funds Funds 

Capital Total Nonmajor 
Projects Funds Governmental Funds 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

Ad valorem 
Sales 

Pecs, charges and commissions for services 
Use of money and propertŷ  
Other revenues 
Fines and forfeitures 
Intergovernmental 
Federal grants 
State grants 
Local grants 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 
General government 
Judicial 
Financial administration 

Public safety 
Police 
Fire 

Public works 
• Culture and recreation 

Planning and urban development 
Economic development and assistance 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Debt service principle 
Debt service interest 

TotaJ expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Bond proceeds 
Sales of Assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

1 Total other financing sources (uses) 
1 

Net changes in fund balajiccs 

Fund balances - beginning (as restated, "Note 18) 

Fund balances - ending 

% 6,557,755 
796,126 
57,262 
78,283 

178,393 

2,414,778 
191,136 
25.000 

10.298,733 

87.873 
207,451 

4,359,505 
3,606,489 

238,036 
386.293 

2,037,603 
347,982 

1,327,767 

581,135 
80.851 

13,260.985 

(2,962,252) 

3.789,360 
(328.111) 

3,461,249 

498,997 

11,698,267 

$ 12,197,264 

$ 384,605 
3,857,309 

5,171 

4,247,085 

2,770.000 
2,221,237 

4,991,237 

(744,152) 

3,109,663 
(H) 

3,109,652 

2.365.500 

4.154.622 

J 6,520.122 

S 

S 349,451 
34,945 
75,000 

69,009 
136,665 

5.000 

670,070 

368,225 

35.734 
168,542 

10,208,908 

10,784,409 

., (10,114,339). ,,_ 

6.765,003 
106,563 

1.831,973 
(5,617.813) 

3,085.726 

(7.028.613) 

30,172,321 

$ 23,143,708 S 

384,605 
10,415,064 
1.145,577 

97.378 
153.283 
178,393 

2,483.787 
327,801 
30.000 

15,215,888 

87,873 
575,676 

4,359,505 
3,606,489 

276,770 
554,835 

2,037,603 
347,982 

11,536,675 

3.351.135 
2.302,088 

29,036.631 

(13.820,743) 

6,765.003 
106.563 

8,730,996 
(5,945.935) 

9,656,627 

(4.164,116) 

46.025.210 

41,861.094 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Net Assets 

Noomajor Enterprise Funds 

April 30, 2010 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Other improvements 
Furniture & Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infi-astructure 
Construction in progress 
Zoo animals 
Accumulated depreciation 

LA Purchase 
Gardens & 2Soo 

S 2,500 
34,830 

5,109 

42,439 

2,162,068 
1,006,716 

173,883 

92.648 
(2,552,584) 

Livestock 
Arena 

$ 685 

685 

495,977 
44,382 
32,936 

(573,295) 

Total 

5 2,500 
34,830 

6S5 

5,109 

43,124 

2,658,045 
1,051,098 

206,819 

92,648 
(3,125,879) 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts and retainage payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Customer deposits, net 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent iiabiUties 
Notes payable - DEQ 
Compensated absences 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NETASSETS: 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

882,73? 

925,170 685 

23.595 

36,698 

685 

$ 60;293 _$_ 

44,994 

44,994 

105.287 685 

819,883 

819.883 

882,731 

925,855 

24,280 

36.698 

685 $ 60.978 

44,994 

44,994 

105,972 

819,883 

819,883 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

Nonmajor Enterprise 
For the Year Ended April 30,2010 

LA Purchase 
Gardens & Zoo 

Livestock 
Arena TotaJ 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services 
Rent and fees 
Admissions 
Concessions and rides 

Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Salaries, wages, and benefits 
Materials, repairs, and supplies 
Utilities and communications 
Depreciation and amortization 
Insurance 
Promoter's expenses 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Property taxes 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfer 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - beginning 

Total net assets - ending 

3,850 $ 

(246,067) 

5,805 

(3,919) 

9,655 
213,637 
87,660 
15,021 

320,168 

946,591 
262,216 

89,334 
65,486 
45,227 
21,041 

117,114 

1.547,009 

(1,226,841) 

980,774 

980,774 

5,805 

654 
9,070 

9,724 

(3,919) 

213.637 

87,660 
15,021 

325,973 

946,591 

262,870 
98,404 
65,486 
45,227 
21,041 

117,114 

1,556.733 

(1^30,760) 

980,774 

980,774 

(249,986) 

$ 

248,470 

2,403 

817,480 

819.883 

3,919 

$ 

252,389 

2,403 

817,480 

819,883 
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CITY O F M O N R O E 

Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30,2010 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from (returned to) customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for scpjices and btntl^ts 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

CftJsh flows from noncapital financing activities 
Ad valorem taxes 
Trausfers In 

Net. cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition of capital assets 

Nei cash provided by (used for) financing activities 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, May 1,2009 

Cash and cash eqaivalents, April 30,2010 

LA. purchase 
Gardens & Z-oo 

326,249 $ 
(543,874) 

(942,563) 
(1,160,208) 

976,630 
248.470 

1.225,100 

(64,891) 

... (^.S9I). 

2,500 

2,500 

Livestock Arena 

5,732 S 
(9,651} 

(3.919) 

3.919 
3.919 

J 

Total 

331,981 
(553.525) 
(942.583) 

(1,164,127) 

976,630 
252,389 

1,229.019 

(64,891) 
(64,891). 

2,500 

2,500 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities 

Operating Income (loss) 

Adjustnjeats to reconciJe operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation 

Change in assets and liabilities 
Accoxmts receivable 
Dne from other funds 
Prcpwd expenses 
Accounts payable 
Due to other fUnds 
Deferred revenue 
Compensated absences 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

(1,226.841) $ (3,919) S (1.230.760) 

65,486 

46 

63 
(9.006) 

6,036 
4,008 

(1 160,208) S 

(72) 

72 

(3.919) $ 

65.486 

46 
(72) 
63 

(8,934) 

6.036 
4,008 

(1,164,127) 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Net Assets 
Internal Service Funds 

April 30, 2010 

ASSETS: 
Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 
Due from ofeer funds 
Inventories 

Total Current assets 

Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation: 
Land 
Btiildings and improvements 
Other improvements 
Furniture & Equipment 
Vehicles 
Accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

LL^BILITIES: 
Current liabilities 
Accounts and retainage payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Due to other fiinds 

Total Current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NETASSETS: 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Employees' 
Group 

Insurance 

S 3,122,565 
9,805 

3.132.370 

3J32„370 

486J63 

.. 486.763 

486.763 

2,645.607 

$ 2^45,607 

Central Shop 

3 

$ 51,741 

51.741 

45,000 
3,406,242 

105,701 
126,958 

(I.H5.231) 

2.538.670 

2.590.411 

20,062 

20.062 

, . 20.pe2 , _ 

2,570,349 

$ 2,570,349 ; 

Total 

; 3,122,565 
9,805 

51,741 

3.184.111 

45,000 
3,406.242 

105,701 
126,958 

(1.145,231) 

2,538,670 

5,722781 

20,062 
486,763 

506.825 

506.825 

5,215,956 

P 5,215,956 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, l^ouisiana 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Net Assets 

Internal Service Funds 
For the Year Ended April 30,2010 

Operating revenues 
Charges for Services 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Benefits paid to participants 
Salaries, wages, and benefits 
Materials, repairs, and supplies 
Utilities and communications 
Depreciation and amortization 
Shop expenses 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before contritaitjons and transfer 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets - Begiiming 

Total net assets - Ending 

Employees' 
Group 

Insurance 

$ 7,989.080 

7,989,080 

6,426,556 

57 

6,426,613 

1,562,467 

Central Shop 

S 1,023,618 S 

1,023,618 

783,028 
16,609 
37,744 

105,345 
527,928 

13,932 

1,484,586 

(460,968) 

Total 

9,012,698 

9.012,698 

6.426,556 
783,028 

16,609 
37,744 

105,345 
527,928 

13,989 

7,911,199 

1,101,499 

293 

293 

1,562,760 

359.534 

293 

293 

(460,968) 1,101,792 

359,534 

1,562,760 (101.434) 1,461,326 

1,082,847 2.671,783 3,754,630 

£ 2.645.607 $ 2.570349 $ 5^15.956 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds 
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended April 30,2010 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from customers 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Interest income 
Principal paid on debt 
Interest paid on debt 

Net cash provided by (used for) fmancing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, May 1,2009 

Cash and cash equivalents, April 30,2010 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by (used for) operating activities 

Group 
Insurance 

8,842,272 $ 
(56) 

(7.785,002) 
1,057,214 

Central 
Shop 

1,023.754 % 
(600,259) 
(783,029) 
(359,534) 

Total 

9.866,026 
(600,315) 

(8,568,031) 
697,680 

293 

359,534 

359.534 

359,534 

359.534 

293 

293 

1,057,507 

2,065.058 

3,122,565 

293 

1,057,507 

2,065.058 

- $ • 3,122,565 

Operating Income (loss) 1,562,467 $ (460,968) $ 1,101,499 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Due from other fimds 
Inventories 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 

(4,992) 
858,184 

(309,323) 
(1,049,122) 
1,057^14 $ 

105,345 

135 

7,494 
(n.540) 

i;359,534) $ 

105,345 

(4.857) 
858,184 

7,494 
(320,863) 

(1,049,122) 
697,680 

100 



OTHER MISCELLANEOUS SCHEDULES 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATION 

AND AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR THE 2009 TAX ROLL 

Assessed Valuation $ 388,537,936 

Tax Rate per thousand dollars (Mills) 

Gross Tax Levy 
Plus; Adjustments 

Adjusted Tax Levy 

Tax Collected 
2009 Tax RoU $ 10,548,805 
Prior Years Tax Rolls 127,034 

ALLOCATION OF TAXES COLLECTED MILLS 
General Fund 
Recreation Center Maintenance 
Public Safety 
Drainage Maintenance 
City Court Bonds 
Civic Center Complex 
Louisiana Puxchase (jmdens & Zoo 
Capital Improvements 
Police Department 
Fire Department 
Airport Improvements 
Street Maintenance 
Grasscutting Collections 
Demolition Collections 

27.15 

$ 

_ $ _ 

10,548,805 

(18,020) 

10,530,785 

Total $ 10,675,839 

10.65 

1.88 

1.06 

1.31 

2.50 

2.50 . 

3.25 

1.50 

1.50 

1.00 

-

-

$ 4,172,889 

736,551 

415,290 

513,236 

79 
980,772 

980,774 

1,274,977 

588,486 

588,482 

384,532 

49 
34,700 

5,022 

Total 27.15 $ 10,675,839 

GENERAL BONDED DEBT SUPPORTED BY TAX LEVY 
Airport $ 18,940,000 

PERCENT OF BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUATION 4.87% 
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a r v OF MOHRoe 
M«nrM, L^uiiiiDi 

SCHEDULE OF LONG-TERM O S U C A I l O N S 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30. ZOIO 

tKue 
D t i a 

IntercK 
R»tti 

Oritrnril 
Amotml 

Bll.nce 
April 3D, 

I 0 » ItSMd Rcliftd 

B.lw,c« 
Aprn30. 

2010 
Prindpil MMurity Srbedule 

ForrDh>reY[»rj 

COVER^lME^fTAL ACTIVITIES 
G c u n l Oblitallon Bendf: 

Public ImpTOvwTicrrtr 
Refiiading Bonk, 2003 (Court u d Jail) 

T(rt>l General OWftwicm Bondl 

T u IrKTcnHSl Bond;: 
Toivcr Dri^e 

ToUl Ta-c incturcni Boodt 

I).7 70,000 
•^60.000 

10,185.000 MM.OOO - $930,000 la March 1.2025 

Certificalei of locfablHlnMi: 
CtnlfitiVw of IndrfjteiiiEjt-Ciyw Cwnc Roof 

7o»l CerlificMci of IndoMedncis 
U2S.0PO 
1^25.000 

1,1<SD0D SiyS,W»-5330,000 w April 2tH 4 
U<i.QOO 

Sattt T u Bomb: 

TouJ 0 1 1 % Rotrwe Boodi 

AtrpMl R«vemift B«rKli: 
Scria 2009 Ajrpon Bonb 

ToOJ Airpon Rewwftw Bowl* 

Series 2002 (Strcrti«c*w) 
Serita 2002A (Fire/Dnaiip:) 
SeriM 2D03 (Sutrti) 
Stnn2006 

ToUlSt IaT*xBondi 

R»JimdinB Bwwh: 
Striw J99W (Fin; w d Priici Fewlf^) 
Scria2007A 
Doferrod AmowalorRcfundinB 
StTOi 20011-20 Dc¥elopiiitm 
DofeiTtd Amount of Rcfuodirs 

Toul RcfotwEng Bo«b 

UrtBtj- RevDiuE Bonds: 
Soiw 200) - DEQ CScw} 
Str ia 2003 - DEQ (Stwtr) 
Serw. 2005 DEQ 
ScT^ 200C DEQ 

2002 
2n02A 
2D0J 
fflCS 

19M 
2007 
2007 
200S 
200S 

2001 
1003 
2005 

vm 

4.70X-7 00W 
<1.625S-4.S0W 
3,25W-S.50% 

3 45% 

s.osy. 
4 002% 

4.00W - 5 SOW 

3 95% 
3 95% 
3,93% 
095% 

le.Mo.ooo 
15.000,000 
22,400,000 
3.000.000 

66,400,000 

7,s«;,cioo 
2?.34O,00O 
0,290.62fi> 
26,3^5,000 
(1,462,775) 
«,316.5?9 

24.500.000 
10.000,000 
11.000,000 
14.000.000 

12, "190,000 
MJTJ.DOO 
19,500,000 
3.000,000 

49.315.000 

a.ow.ooo 
2F. 180,000 

(IS0,4II) 
24.665,000 
(1.253.107) 
52.790,77 S 

19.775,177 
H.l 70,000 
7,2IIJ77 

91^610 
35,325,1114 

1.414,423 
5,210.580 

19,250.000 

790,000 
130,000 
655,000 
103,000 

),6W.000 

725,000 
I.I40.KW 

215.104 
!. 105,000 

20i.9>B 
3J94.072 

.003,340 
410.000 
3I5.00D 

11,700,000 
14,195.000 
1I,I145,M» 
2.195,000 

47,635.000 

l.iJS.OOB 
27,040.000 

(MS.3t4) 
23.560,000 
(1.044,839^ 
50,244.147 

II30,000-Sl,33S.0001oJuly 1.2020 
SlflO.OOO- SI.R3i.000 JO Jul), j , 2027 
MgS.OOO-Sl.TlS.OOOlolDl)- 1,2027 
II m.OOO-S205.00D 10Mv 1,202(1 

«J5.000-S33S,QOOloMartJi ] .20J3 
I I , 175,000 -13.2)10.000 to hihr 3026 

SM5O,000-12.t45,0OOtoM»reh 1.2015 

11,772,537 A 11,195,000-11,905.000 to J i™ 30, 2023 
7,760,000 S4;5,000-S710.000tc.Jom 1,2023 
(.3lt0,MO 1400,000-1775.000 to July 1,1027 
SJ79.2tO SMO.CMi-S765.»»h)»yl.i&W> 

40^92,547 

11.940.000 1350.000 - SJ,2ID,000 to Ftbiuory 1.2039 
ltj94D,0OD 

Othtr; 
Cbrmiand iodpmnts 
CipHal Lease (Eoei©' Pefftirminoc Equipmcnl) 
Motet pny»We 
Accrued Viat ion and Sick P»y 
Other ptst ewpkiyinenl bwtfta 

To tn lOtkr 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

4 7S%-S 59% 
3«E% 

7.303.139 
2^09,299 
2.299.953 
S,.S72,518 
1.622,652 

19.007.571 

612,556 

2,131,221 
4.447.729 
7 . l g i J I 6 

17.47! 
161,360 
5! 1,135 

1.660,2)3 
1,017.776 

7,B2t,227 
2.I47.9J9 

1,718.811 
5.933.5J6 
.^052.605 

1174,443 
I t4t , t24 

3.507.962 

321.046^99 168,779.230 33.196.519 ) 1.600,374 191.ZZ3319 

• 1349,492 lo Man* ) .202r 
1163.90710No«wber IS.W12 

SEWER DEPARTMENT 
UlHity Revenue Bondt; 

Striei 2001 - DEQ 
TolJ SaJ« Tax Bendi 

ALL DEr A R T M C H T S 

Otlwr: 
Accrued Vacaiioo md Sick P»y 

2,3W,123 
2.294.123 

101.660 2,192,463 A Sc»AmoniatfionilHjN'n2001-DEQ. 
2,192.463 

TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACnVITlES 2.500,000 J^ 3324,071 1 676.807 S 

( A ) Th«th«^»r^iheJUneS27,00O,0oebn)e.TJKl2,5OO.000breteriJedd(rerlbfonlbeStv^erDtpBrtmeitt* 
bonhi «nd tbe SZ4,500,000 ii recorded H Eenerd [ovcminant debt. Alt are p t j tb l* fmn S t k t T a i . 

( B } Thi ie two are the f w » 11,452,000 lstoe.TlNiSS16,46Sii recorded direct]} on tt)c]fi1tirritlScr*iuFu«d 
booki and ttw S63S.532 ii recorded u leneril [ovcmnunt debt. AH are piyible from (("cral i 

107 

http://SI.R3i.000


CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

SUPPLEMENTAJL INFORMATION SCHEDULES 

As of and For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

COMPENSATION PAID TO COUNCIL MEMBERS 

The schedule of compensation paid to council members is presented in compliance with House 
Concunent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation 
of the council members is included in the legislative expenditures of the General Fund. In 
accordance with Section 2-05 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Monroe, the council, 
through Ordinance 10312, has set compensation of council members at $1,000 per month. In 
addition to the compensation paid all council members, the chairperson of the council receives 
an additional $500 per month to perform the duties of that office. 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to Council Members 
For the Year Ended AprU 30, 2010 

Jay Mane 
Gretchen Ezemack 
Ben Katz 
Arthur Gilmore 
Robert Stevens, Chairman 
Eddie Claik 
Ruben L. Oliver, Sr. 

Total 

District 1 
District 2 
District 2 
District 3 
District 4 
District 5 
District 5 

$ 12,000 
3,164 
8,538 

12,000 
18,000 
11,538 

461 
$ 65,701 
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REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENTAUDITLNGSTANDARDS 
AND OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
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LUFFEY, HUFFMAN, RAGSDM^B & 5OIGNIER 
(A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

John L. Luffey, MBA, CPA {1963-2002} 
Francis I. Huffman, CPA 
PhilipA. Ragsdale, CPA 
David Ray Soignier, CPA. MBA 

John Henman, CPA 
Lynn Andries, CPA 
Esther Atteberry, CPA 
Sandra Harrington, CPA 

REPORT OF INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

We have audited the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fimd and the aggregate remaining fund mformation for the City of 
Monroe (the City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2010 which collectively comprise the 
City*s basic fmancial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2010. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Fmancial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's intemal control over financial 
reporting as. a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on fhe 
effectiveness of the City's intemal control over fmancial reporting. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed 'to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies 
in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in fhe normal course of performing their assigned functions, 
to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 

1100 North 18th Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel: {318)387-2672 • Fax: (318)322-8866 • Website: www.afullservicecpafirm.com 

MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN tt4STlTUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Finding and Questioned Costs listed as fmdings 10-01, 10-02 and 
10-04 to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's fmancial statements are firee 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its comphance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompUance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards which are 
described in the accompany Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as findings 10-01 
through 10-04. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City of Monroe in a 
separate letter dated October 29, 2010. 

The City's responses to the fmdings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City's responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This report is solely for the ioformation and use of management, city council members, others 
within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and other entities granting 
funds to the City, and the Legislative Auditor for the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other-than these specified parties. However, under provisions 
of Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

October 29,2010 
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Î uFFEY, HUFFMAN, RAGSDALE & SQICNIER 
(A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION) 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

John L. Luffey. MBA, CPA (1963-2002) 
Francis 1. Huffman. CPA 
Philip A. Ragsdale, CPA 
David Ray Soignier, CPA. MBA 

John Herman, CPA 
Lynn Andries, CPA 
Esther Atteben^. CPA 
Sandra Han-lngton, CPA 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the comphance of the City of Monroe (the City) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2010. The 
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants apphcable to each of its major federal 
programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; fhe standards apphcable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards^ issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non­
profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's 
compliance with those requirements. 

As described in findings 10-01 and 10-04 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs, the City of Monroe did not comply with requirements regarding activities 
allowed and unallowed, procurement, reporting, monitoring, and special tests and provisions 
that are apphcable to its Commnnity Development Block Grant program; procurement and 
special tests and provisions applicable to its Community Development Block Grant ARRA 
program; and activities allowed and unallowed, procurement, and monitoring applicable to its 
HOME program. Compliance with- such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the 
City to comply with the requirements applicable to those programs. 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the City 
complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable 
to each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30, 2010. 

1100 North IBtti Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel- {318)387-2672 • Fax: (318)322-8866 • Website: www.afullsep/lcecpafirm.com 

MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU^n•ANTS 

113 

http://www.afullsep/lcecpafirm.com


City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control 
over compliance with the reqmrements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's intemal control 
over compliance with the requhements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on the effectiveness 
of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express aii opinion on the, 
effectiveness of the City's intemal control over comphance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over comphance was for the limited purpose described in 
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there 
can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have 
been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in intemal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exist when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance wi.th a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in intemal control over comphance described in the 
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as findings 10-01 and 10-04 to be 
material weaknesses. 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City's responses and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, council members, 
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the Legislative 
Auditor of the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, under provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

October 29,2010 
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City of Monroe, Louisiaaa 
Schedule of ExpenditDres of Federal Awariis 

For the Year Ended April S0» ZOIO 

Federil Grantor / 
Pflis-Through Grantor/ 

Progrgm Title CFDANo. 

Pass-ThrouEh 
Grant 

Number 
Federsl 

ExpenditPres 
Ur S. pepgrtnicBt oCHQuiinf: and Dr><n Pgyelppment 

Direct: 
ConuDQDJIy Devdopmait Block Gnmi - 2008 
Community DevelopmcDt Blodc Granl -2009 
ARRA - Ccamoimty Etevdopmcm Block GrwU - 2009 
CDBG Sublolal 

Home Investment Partnership Qrani - 200] 
. Home Investmect PtrtacTfihjp Gnot • 2002 

Home bvcstmcm Pmtoerriup Grant - 2003 
Home InvestmciLl Partnership Gnot - 2006 
Home lavestmenl Partnership Grant - 200? 
Home bvesttDCDt Paitoeiship Gnot - 2008 
Horoe hivestCDcnt PartnoEhip Giant - 2009 

EtDme Invnhnent Partnenbip Grvat Subtotal 

14.21B 
14JZ15 
14.253 

N/A 
N/A 
N/A 

805,945 
57,95S 

133,103 

14.239 

14.239 

14.239 

14.239 

14.239 

14.239 

14239 

N/A 

WA 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

957,006 

1.755 

3.693 

B9I 

1 

150,554 

435,028 
242,078 

83^,400 

Paw-Throuth Proeranw: 
LA Dqrt of Social Scrvicec'DEGcca of Comnnarity Scrrioet; 
Emergojcy Shelter Oraiits PiDgram - 2007 
Emergcocy Shelter Grants Progoun • 2008 

Emergency Shelter Graoti Program Subtotal 

LA Dcpt of Social Scr'ices/OfSce of Commnnity Servicer 
Homelcn Prcvcmioii lUpid Rehonsiog Program 

La HonsiDj Fifltnce Agency: 
Neighborhood Stabiliiaiion Program 

TotaJ Dept Housing A Urban Developmcxit 

U. S. Depgrtment of Jujtice 
Direct 

ARRA - COPS Oriented PoKcing Services: COPS Hiring RccOToy Program 

14J31 
14231 

14.257 

14228 

650095 

S65954 

685502 

HD09 

80,025 
105.450 

185,475 

8.716 

3.816 

2.029.413 

176.470 

PsM-TlMftiQgh Projnmu; 
LA Commiuion on Law Enfcuuemcol & Admin of Ctiminal Justice: 

Edward Byroe Mcmon^ Fomaila Grant DARE Program Fund 
Edward Byme Memorial ForamiU Grant DARE Prognon Fund 
ARRA - Edward Byme Memorial Jnitice AxtistaDce Grant (JAG) - Grantj to StUcs and Temtoriei 
Ouacbiti Parisfa ShetifTc OfBce: 

OfBco of Justice Program (JAO}-08 
Office of Juiricc Prognm (JAG)-09 
ARRA - Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistaate Grant (JAG) - GranJi to Unio of Loc*J Govemrnent 

Total Dtpartment of Justice 

16.579 

16.579 
16.803 

16.738 

16.738 

16.804 

E09-2-006 

El 0-2-007 

882-8-052 

N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

_ 

1.832 
22.176 

21,308 

5.978 

28,681 

171,754 

418,199 

U, S. Dcpurtmtnl of TraasQ^rtation 
Direct 

Airport Infirovaiiait Program: 
ARRA - Airport Terminal- Comtruct Tcmnoal Bailding, Phue D 
Airport Temrinal- Coaistmct Terminal Building. Phtse HI 

Fcdaal Transit Auftioiily Program; 
FTA Prognnr Capital (Bus & Bos Facilities) 
ARRA - FTA Prognun: d^Hial - [BufSigoi. Shcllaj, Renovate Admin) 
FTA Program: Cental and 0peiB:ing 
FTA Piosjam; Capital. Oper«lii« Awistance for FY 09 
FTA Progrwn: Bns Service for Transpoitalioo to Jcfcs ( Job Access Rcvtne Coamiate) 
FTA Program: Opentiiig «od Capital A ŝittBiice 2010 

20.106 
20.106 

20.507 
20.507 

20.507 

20.507 
20.507 

20.507 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 
N/A 

5271,080 

3.766,805 

6,391 
106,986 
22,657 

1,216,924 
141,080 

450.000 

Paft-Throogh Programs: 
LA Rtoeatiwi TrailwOfficc of Slate Parte/Dept of Culture, RccreaiicaJ SL Tourism: 

Recreational TiailE Prognim: Ouachita River Scenic GverlooJc & Trails Project 
LA Highway Safety Commisrioa; 

Stata and Comnroorty Highway Safety 
StatB and Community HSf̂ way Sifity 

LA I>t?>t ofTraiisptstalion Rnd Devdopment 
Job Access-Reverse Coramntc 

Totxl Department of TraotportatiOQ 

20219 

20.600 

20,600 

20.516 

OSLRT-OCH^lOl 

PT 2009-4 9-00-00 

PT 2010-38-00-00 

741-37-0120 

16,540 

11,113 

24.721 

16.970 

11,051.067 
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City of Monroe, X,onjsiana 
Schedale of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended April 30,2010 

Federal Graator/ 
Pass-Through Grantor / 

Frogram Title 

Pass-Through 

Grant Federal 
CFDA No. Number Expenditures 

Direct: 
State and Tribal Atrfitaoce Grant (STAG) 66.817 52.470 

Pass-Through Progrsnw: 
LA Dept of Eovironmffltal Quality: 

Capitalization Granti for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 

Total EnvtronmeDfal Protection Agency 

U. S. Department of Horpelaod Secaritv 

Direct 

AasistanCB to Firefighters Grant- Stal5ng for Adequate Fire St Emergoicy Response (SAFER) 

Asastance to Firefighters Grant- Prevention & Safety 

Transportatjon Security AdminJEtration 

Pais-ThrDugh Progrsrar: 

LA Ooveinort Office of Homdand Security and Eroergeincy PrcparcdncES (GOHSEP): 
Disaster Grrots-Public Assistance (Himicaoe Oustav) 
Hazard WitigaliDa Project-LA Pilot Planning 
Unifocm Constmctioii Code ImpleracnlatJon 
State Homelaod Security Program 
Stale Homeland Security Program- LETPP 

Total U. S, Departfitttnt of H&mcUsd Security 

11.S. Ptpar imeot of the loterior- Natioaal Farit Service 

pBtt-Through Programs: 
l A DivisoD of Historic PreservaticWOffire of CiQtura] Dev A)ept of Cultim^ Recreation & Tonri 11^ 

Historic PreservatitMi Fimd Grants-ln-Aid National Rcgjsicr Nominaliorj-Rcwrite 

Total U.S- Depart of the Interior- National Park Service 

U.S. Ptpat-tijiypff pf Health aod Hnffi^q gcrvtces 
Pftit-Throngh Prognunr. 

JefFtrson Parish Sberift's Offioo/West Moaiue Police Department 
Ding-Frca Commmutcs Support Prpgiam-Hi^ Intensity Drug TrKffickiag Area (HIDTA) 
Dnjg-Frra Communites Support Program-High Intensity Drag Ttafficldng Area (HIDTA) 
Drug-Free Comnnmtes Support Program-Hi^ Intensi^ Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 

Total U..S. Departxaeot of Health and Hiunaa Services-Office ofNitionsl Drag PoHcy 

Total Federal l^xpenditiires 

See Notes to Sdicdule of Expenditarei of Federal Awards 

66.468 N/A 

15.904 -HP-09 

6,817,473 

97.044 

97.044 

97.090 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

259,538 
192.000 

150.705 

97.036 
97.039 

97.039 
97.067 

97.067 

FEMA-1786-DR-LA 
1607-073-0005 

1603-DR-LA-OD02 

2007-GE-T7-0019 
200frOE-T6-0069 

3,653 

122,425 

1,436 
91,200 

8,276 

819,233 

1.500 

I ^ 0 0 

93276 
93.276 

93276 

IgFGCP502Z 

19FGCP502Z 

GOPGCOOOIA 

5,709 

45,990 
11,373 

63.072 

$ 2 1 ^ 0 , 1 5 7 
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CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30,2010 

Note l General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity 
of all federal financial assistance of the City of Monroe (the City) for the year ended 
April 30, 2010. Ail federal financial assistance received directly from federal 
agencies is included on the schedule, as well as federal financial assistance passed-
through other government agencies. 

Note 2 - Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using 
the modified accrual basis of accoimting, which is described in Note 1 to the City's 
primary government financial statements. 

Note 3 - Loans Outstanding 

The City has loans outstanding under Federal loan or loan guarantee award programs 
of$426,109 at April 30,2010. 

Note 4 - Relationship of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards to the Primary 
Government Financial Statements 

The following reconciliation is provided to help the reader of the City's financial 
statements and supplementary information relate such information to the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended April 30, 2010: 

Revenues 
General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 
Enterprise Funds 

Total per Financial Statements 
Plus Expense Reimbursements 
Total per Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Federal 
Awards 

821,767 
2,414,778 
9,106,892 

12,343,437 
150,710 

12,494,147 

Nonoperating 
Revenues -
Operatmg 

Grants 

$ - $ 

1.961,007 
1,961,007 

$ 1,961,007 $ 

Other 
Financing 
Sources 

- $ 

6,765,003 

6,765,003 

6,765,003 $ 

Total 

821,767 
2,414,778 

15,871,895 
1,961,007 

21,069,447 
150,710 

2U20,157 
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CITY OF MONROE, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2010 

Note 5 - Funds Provided to Subrecipients 

Of the Federal expenditures presented on this schedule, the City provided $243,321 
through the Community Development Block Grants, Home Investment Partnership 
Grants and the Emergency Shelter Grant Programs to subrecipients. 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Section I. Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors* leport issued: Unqualified. 

Intemal control over fmancial reporting: 

• Material weaknesses identified? X Yes No 

• Significant deficiencies identified that 
are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes X "No 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? ,, X Yes . No 

Federal Awards 

• Material weaknesses identified? X.Yes ^No 

• Significant deficiencies identified that 
are not considered to be material 
weaknesses? Yes X N o 

Type of auditors* report on compliance 
for major programs: Qualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 501 (a) of Circular A-133? X Yes ^No 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program 

14.218 Community Development Block Grant 

14.239 Home Investment Partnership Grant 

14.253 ARRA - Community Development Block Grant 

16.710 ARRA - COPS Hiring Recovery Program 

16.803 ARRA- Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant-
Grants to States and Territories 

16.804 ARRA - Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant -
Grants to Units of Local Government 

20.106 ARRA - Airport improvement Program - Terminal Building Phase II 

20.106 Airport Improvement Program - Terminal Building Phase III 

20.507 ARRA - FTA Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Section II. Findings related to the financial statements that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards: 

10-01 COMPLIANCE WITH LOUISIANA PUBLIC BID LAW 

Finding 
Local Funds 
Louisiana R.S. 38:2212 provides, in part, that all public work exceeding the contract limit, of 
SI50,000 including labor, materials and equipment, shall be advertised and let by contract to the 
lowest responsible bidder who had bid according to the contract, plans, and specifications as 
advertised. In addition, to disqualify any bidder on the groimds that the bidder is not a 
"responsible bidder," the public entity shall give written notice to the bidder of the proposed 
disqualification, all reasons for disqualification and give the bidder the opportunity to be heard at 
an informal hearing to refute the reasoris for disqualification. 

During the year ended April 30, 2010, the City entered into a pubhc works contract of 
approximately $418,000 for renovations to Chennault Golf Course. Requests for Proposals were 
authorized and accepted instead of bids as required by statute. In addition, the City rejected the 
lowest proposal of approximately $401,000. In reviewing the associated files, no documentation 
was included to justify the rejection of the lowest proposal, nor the notification of the rejectionlo 
the contractor and the contractor'S right to a hearing. 

Community Development Block Grant Program 
The City accepted the higher of two bids for the construction of a sidewalk funded with 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act fimds of the Community Development Block Giant 
When questioned, management produced a letter stating that the bid was irregular because the 
unit prices were extended improperly. However, the bid was not extended at all, rather the 
contractor provided a total price for each line item in the "Schedule of Bid Items". The 
"Schedule of Bid Items" contained the following wording at the top of the column providing the 
description of each line item 'Pay Item Unit Price (in words, ink or type). However, the 
Louisiana Uniform Public Work Bid Form Unit Price Forrru which is required to be used for all 
pubHc works contracts that require bidding under the Public Bid Law, provides for unit prices 
and imit price extension. In addition, the advertisement for bids states "the award of contract, if 
awarded, will be made to the lowest qualified bidder whose proposal complies with all 
requirements prescribed within 30 days after opening proposals." There is no indication that fhe 
contractor with the low bid was given an opportunity to comply with the apparent unit price 
requirement. Also, no documentation was included in the file to justify the rejection of the 
lowest proposal, nor the notification of the rejection to the contractor and the contractor's right to 
a hearing. 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Recommendation 
Management should ensure that the Louisiana Public Bid Law is complied with in awarding 
contracts for public works projects. 

Management's Corrective Action Flan 
Purchasing will adhere to the Louisiana Public Bid Law when awarding contracts for pubhc 
works projects. 

10-02 COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENTS 

Finding: 
Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution provides, in part that "the funds, credit, 
property, or things of value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be loaned, 
pledged, or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private." Several 
Attorney General opinions and at least one court case in recent yeaxs have addressed this issue. 
In Opinion No. 10-0123, the Attorney General opined that in order for an expenditure of public 
fiinds to be permissible under the constitution, the public entity must have legal authority to 
make the expenditure and must show: (1) a public purpose for the expenditure for which the 
public entity has leg?d authority to pursue, (2) that the expenditure, taken as a whole, does not 
appear to' be gratuitous; and (3) that the public entity has a demonstrable, objective, arid 
reasonable expectation of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of 
public fimds. In our review of 13 of the 22 cooperative endeavor agreements entered into during 
the year ended'April 30, 2010 to determine compliance with the state constitution, we noted that 
9 of the agreements appear to not meet some of the aspects of the three prong test outlined in the 
Attorney General opinion. While some of the agreements appear to support a public purpose and 
perhaps some can expect some value in exchange for the expenditure, none of the agreements 
examined were, supported, by documentation of "demonstrable, objective and reasonable" 
expectations of such return. Some examples of expenditures that appear not to serve a public 
purpose or provide for a demonstrable benefit to the City are: $10,000 to a social firatemity in 
connection with its nnnna) conference held at fhe Monroe Civic Center; $15,000 to a non-profit 
organization for a banquet to be held in the Monroe Civic Center; $25,000 to another non-profit 
for a museiom in another city; and $50,000 to promoters of a boxing event held in the Civic 
Center. Additionally, most of the agreements called for fhe parties to provide progress reporting 
and/or accountings of the use of the funds to the City. As of the date of this report, no such 
reporting has been provided to us, therefore we can only conclude that none were provided by 
the recipients of the funds. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City only enter into agreements that clearly identify the public purpose 
of the expenditure, are not gratuitous and that provide for a demonstrable expectation of the City 
receivmg at least equivalent value in exchange for its expenditure of fiinds. While quantifying 
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a T Y OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

the benefit to the City may at times be difficult, every effort should be made to do so based on 
sound judgment and estimates without unrealistic claims of return. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: 
This is a difficult issue because of the La. Supreme Court decision in Cabela decision. I met 
with the La. Attorney GeneraPs office and have spoken to numerous municipal/ parish attorneys 
in Louisiana about what should be done to insure adherence to the court guidelines in the Cabela 
decision. Prior to the end of the calendar year I will provide a document referred to as 
"Guidelines For Agencies Requesting Pubhc Funds" which will hst detailed steps M^ch rnust be 
completed prior to submitting an apphcation for funding. The steps will include a statement as' 
to the "public purpose" of the proposed project and a detailed worksheet for the recipient to 
complete as to how this project will produce funding equal to or in excess of the funding being 
requested. The application will provide a process for accountability to the City of Monroe for 
the administration department to. review. I have spoken to the Mayor about providing me with 
the name of an individual in his office who will be in charge of collecting the data firom the 
recipient. 

10-03 ENERGY EFFICIENCY CONTRACT 

(First Reported - 2008) 

Finding: 

Louisiana Revised Statue (RS.) 33:4547. LA provides, in part, that any political subdivision may 
enter into an energy efficiency contract for services and equipment. R.S. 33:4557.I.B requires 
that the pa3anent obligation of the entity for each year be either set as a percentage of the annual 
eiiergy cost savings attributable to the services or equipment under the contract guaranteed by the 
contractor to be less than the annual energy cost savuigs attributable to the services or equipment 
under the contract. 

R.S. 33:4547.3 requires inclusion of maintenance savings when calculating "annual energy cost 
savings attributable to the services or equipmenf*. Maintenance savings means operating 
expenses that are eliminated and future capital replacement expenditures that are avoided as a 
result of new equipment installed or services performed by the contractor. 

The City of Momoe entered into such an energy efficiency contract in 2003 and the contract was 
subsequently amended twice in 2004. The contract provides for Measured and Verified Energy 
Savmgs of approximately $2,646,000. However there is no guaranteed operational and 
maintenance savings provided for in the contract and there is no requirement that the contractor 
reimburse the City for any deficiencies if actual operational and maintenance savings are not 
achieved. Instead, the contract contains an "Operational and LED Traffic Light Stipulated 
Savings" provision. This provision provides that "The Customer (City of Monroe) and the 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

ESCO (Energy Service Company) agree to stipulate that the Operational and LED Traffic Light 
Stipulated Savings will be deemed to be achieved upon execution of this Agreement. Neither the 
Customer nor fhe ESCO will have any right to object to the use of such amounts as the 
Operational and LED TrafEc Light Stipulated Savings in the calculation of Actual Annual 
Savings". The stipulated savings totaled approximately $4,731,000 

Because the contract does not requne the Operational and LED Traffic Light savings to be 
measured and verified and does not provide for a guarantee if actual savings are not met, the 
contract is not in compliance with state law relating to energy efficiency contracts. 

In opinion number 07-0002, the Louisiana Attorney General opined that because the contractor is 
not required to measure or verify the achievement of the stipulated savings and the contractor is 
not obligated to pay an amount equal to the deficiency if fhe stipulated savings are not met, the 
contract does not meet the statutory defmition of a performance based energy contract. 

In addition, in a lawsuit filed by the contractor against a parish school board in the 18* Judicial 
District Court, the court fotmd that the contract was invalid because stipulated savings do not 
satisfy the statutory requirement of a guarantee for operation and maintenance savings. The 
contractor's requests for review and reversal by fhe First Circuit Court of Appeal and the 
Supreme Court were rejected, effectively ending all of the contractor's challenges. 

Since first reported in 2008, the City has been in negotiations with the ESCO to cure any defects 
which may be contained in the contract. However, the City and the ESCO have not reached an 
agreement and therefore fhe contract is still not in compliance with state law relating to energy 
efficiency contracts. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City's legal counsel continue the negotiations in order to. reach a speedy 
conclusion to this issue to ensure that fhe contract is in compliance with state law. The ESCO 
should be required to measure or verify the achievement or the stipulated savings and the ESCO 
should be obligated by the contmct to pay the City for any savings that are not met. When the 
City receives the calculations of the savings for that year fi-om the ESCO, the City should verify 
fhe calculations. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan: 
The City has been waiting for a final opinion firom the Louisiana Attorney General regarding the 
status of energy performance contracts. While the City was working toward an amendment to 
fhe contract with Siemens Building Technologies, Inc., I knew fi-om conversations with 
representatives of the legislative auditor's office and the attorney general's office that they were 
reviewing a previous opinion with an eye toward finally resolvmg the issue. Recently, in 
Attorney General Opinion No. 10-0138 that office opined that stipulated savings were not 
prohibited but there needed to be some type of contractual measurement to verify savings and a 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

reimbursement mechanism in the event fhe savings were not achieved. I have a Third 
Amendment To Energy Performance Contract ready to present to council in the near future. I 
am waiting on' some figures from administration and we have a meeting set up with Siemens 
dming the first week of November to review the language prior to submitting the amendment to 
council for approval. Thus, this issue should be resolved before the end of the year. 

Section IH; Findings and questioned costs for Federal Awards, including those specified 
by OMB Circular A-133. 

10-01 COMPLIANCE WITH LOUISIANA PUBLIC BID LAW-refer to Section H 

10-04 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 

A. Monitoring of Subrecipients of HUD Programs 

Finding 
The Connnunity Developnaent Block Grant (CDBG) regulations (24 CFR^570) provide, m 
part, that the grantee is responsible for ensuring that CDBG funds are used in accordance 
with all program requirements. The use of subrecipients does not relieve the recipient of this 
responsibihty. The recipient is also responsible for determining the adequacy of performance 
under subrecipient agreements and for taking appropriate action when performance problems 
arise. 

The City of Monroe defmes monitoring activities in the Consohdated Annual Action Plan 
including a risk assessment process, desk monitoring, on-site monitoring, areas monitored, 
monitoring visits and monitoring results. Included in the' plan is the on-site monitoring 
requirement that the Community Development Division will conduct at least one on-site 
monitoring of each CDBG, Home Investment Partnership Act (HOME) and Emergency 
Shelter Grant (ESG) subrecipient activity per program year. 

The only monitoring activity that is performed by the City of Monroe is to review requests 
for payment from subrecipients prior to completing the check request The Program's 
Monitor noted that she has not performed any on-site visits and that such visits would 
hamper her ability to do her desk duties. Management stated that on-site visits are only 
conducted on new or high risk (defined as new) subrecipients, contrary to the City's policy. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management ensure that all facets of subrecipient monitoring are completed 
as outhned in the Annual Action Plan. 
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CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2010 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Community Development plans to monitor all sub recipients as outlined in the procedures for 
monitoring in pur action plan. The Programs Monitor will continue to perform desk reviews, 
provide technical assistance and conduct at least one on site visit in order to evaluate the 
agency's compliance, performance and ability to meet the goals and objectives as outlined in 
their contract(s). 

B. Timely Reporting Related to CDBG Programs 

Finding 
24 CFR 91.15 indicates that in order to facihtate continuity in its CDBG program and to 
provide accountability to citizens, each jurisdiction should submit its consolidated plan to 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) at least 45 days before the start 
of its program year. Further, the action plan and certifications must be submitted on an 
annual basis. 

The City of Monroe's Five Year Consolidated and Annual Action plans were due May 15, 
2010 but not submitted until August 16, 2010. In addition, the 2007 and 2008 Consolidated 
Annual Performance and Evaluation Reports .(CAPERS) were never submitted. The 

• AmericanrRecovery, and Reinvestment Act of 2009 Section 1512 mandates that recijiients" of 
Recovery Act fimds must submit reports' by the 10* day of the month following the end of 
each calendar quarter but a letter fi-om the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development dated August 23, 2010 indicates that there was no record of the City of Momoe 
submittmg the Second Quarter 2010 CDBG~R report. 

An on-site Monitoring and Technical Assistance Review of the City of Monroe's HOME 
Program by HUD on June 1-5, 2009 resulted in 8 findings and 1 concern. The report 
concerning this visit was received by the City on July 20, 2009. The report noted that there 
were 2 findings under the HOME program and 1 finding under the CDBG program still open 
firom the 2007 HUD Monitoring Site Visit In addition, there had been no responses from the 
City on findings included in the 2008 HUD Monitoring Review (8 findings and 2 concerns). 
Subsequent to receipt of this report, the 2007 CDBG finding was cleared. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management ensure that all reports are submitted in a timely manner and any 
findings be addressed and resolved immediately. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Community Development plans to work with HUD in clearing any outstanding monitoring 
fmdings. The division also plans to allow employees to attend trainings not limited to 
obtaining certifications in order to become more proficient in their specialized areas which 
will assist them to complete reports in a timely manner 
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C. Commitment of Federal Funds 

Finding and Questioned Costs 
24 CFR 58.22 provides, in part, that neither a recipient nor any participant in the 
development process may commit U.S. Department of Housmg and Urban Development 
(HUD) assistance under a program on an activity or project until HUD or the state has 
approved the recipient's Request for Release of Funds (RROF) and the related certification 
from the responsible entity. In addition, imtO the RROF and the related certification have 
been approved, neither a recipient nor any participant in the development process may 
commit non-HUD funds on or tmdertake an activity or project under a program. 

CDBG-R Sidewalk Project Questioned Cost: $133,103 
(Grant B'09-MY-22-0005) 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) funds granted to the City of 
Monroe through the Community Development Block Grant were spent for construction of a 
sidewalk prior to the City's receipt of an approved RROF. The grant was approved in the 
amount of $234,964 on July 28, 2009. A contract was signed on February 24, 2010 to 
construct a sidewalk on south 3"̂** street -with aNotice to Proceed of Febmary 24, 2010. 

- The City reimbursed the contractor in the amount of $133,103 during the year ending April 
30, 2010. However, even though the contract was signed February 24, 2010, a Request for 
Release of Funds was not submitted until June 8, 2010 and was approved on June 29, 2010. 
The Request for Release of Funds hsted the program activity and description as 
Neighborhood Sidewalk Program: The city of Monroe will allocate CDBG-R funding to 
install sidewallcs along South 3'" and primary routes to Clara Hall Elementary School and 
Jefferson Junior High School. This indicates that the project had yet to be started in June 
2010. However, the ARRA Section 1512 Recipient Report for fust quarter 2010 submitted 
on April 9, 2010 states that the project is approximately 70% complete. 

We consider fhe $133,103 spent for this project during the year ending April 30, 2010 and 
prior to receipt of the RROF to be questioned costs. In addition, funds spent subsequent to 
the yeax ending April 30, 2010 for this project in the amount of $77,833 are also considered 
likely questioned costs since these funds were also obUgated by the City prior to the RROF 
even being submitted. 

After-School Tutorial Program 

One subrecipient requested reimbursement for expenses purchased outside the scope of the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). This was for services provided between May 1, 
2008 and April 30, 2009. These expenses were then reimbursed by the City who, m turn, 
requested and received reimbursement for these fionds firom the CDBG grant Two thirds 
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($8,067) of the total amount of the contract ($12,110) with this subrecipient were comprised 
of items purchased between the period of May 1, 2009 and April 30, 2010. Of the one 
reimbursement request ($4,043) that fell within the time frame of the contract, May 1, 2008 
through April 30, 2009, 40% ($1,612) of the expenses were either over the hmit of the 
allowable amount for that type of expense or did not appear to be allowable costs at all. 
Nearly $1,100 of expenses exceeded the limits in the budget for such items as accounting, 
telephone/internet access, and various salaries. Additionally, more than $500 were spent on 
items, such as entertainment, that were not provided for in the MOU. In summary, about 
87% of the reimbursements and subsequent CDBG drawdowns related to this Memorandum 
of Understanding were beyond the scope of the contract. 

Housing Rehabilitation Program 

29 CFR 92.206 provides in part tiiat if tiie HOME Lnvestment Partnerships Program (HOME) 
fiinds are used to provide a loan, the pajmaent is an eligible cost only if the HOME assistance 
is part of the original fmancing for the project and the project meets the requirements of the 
program. 

One applicant was approved for a rehabilitation grant through the HOME program but was 
declined for a loan based upon a large amoimt of past due bills. The original financing 
provided for only-the grant but a change order was processed in December ^OO^'increasing" 
the cost of rehabilitation to exceed the grant amount by $1,600. The homeowner did not pay 
the differential between the grant amount and the contract. A hardship option was researched 
and the homeo'wner was deemed to be inehgible. The City then paid the contractor with 
HOME funds until such time as the homeowner would repay the funds. Essentially, the 
homeowner was given a loan m December, 2009 from the City's HOME funds. As of 
October 2010, ten months after work on her home was completed, she has paid less than 
fifteen percent ($235) of the funds loaned. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management ensure that all federal funds are handled in a manner consistent 
with regulations and loans only be made to eligible recipients. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 

CDBG-R Sidewalk Project 

Community Development plans to adhere to all applicable rules and regulations relating to 
the expenditure of federal funds specifically the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009. Special exemption was requested and granted by HUD because of this unique 
situation. These actions were taken based on earlier guidance that grantees must implement 
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projects that must be under contract within 120 days of the grant award in order for these 
funds to be put to use as quickly as possible. 

Rebuttal to Management's Corrective Action Plan 

CDBG-R Sidewalk Project 

No documentation concerning an exemption extended to the City for the CDBG-R funds has 
been located. The CDBG Director did provide additional information concerning the need to 
be under contract within 120 days of the grant award. This additiorial information 'was in the 
form of an informal question and ans'wer document issued by HUD as of February 27, 2009. 
This document was irrelevant with respect to the requirement to have an approved RROF 
prior to the commitment of funds. In addition, the City did not meet a 120 day requirement 
as there were seven months between the approval of the grant agreement (July 28, 2009) and 
the contract with the contractor (February 24, 2010). 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 

After-School Tutorial Program 

Cdmrhunity Development plans'tb review and follow all rules and regulations as outhned in 
the Memorandum of Understandings. The Community Development plans to ensure that 
Subrecipients adhere to all Budget Revisions. 

Housing Rehabilitation Program 

Community Development plans to recoup any outstanding loan funds within the stipulated 
period of the agreement. In this particular case the loan is not completely due until April 
20IL 

Rebuttal to Management's Corrective Action Plan 

Housing Rehabilitation Program 

There has been no documentation of a loan agreement provided, hi the absence of a "written 
loan agreement, there is no stipulated period of fhe agreement nor verification that the loan is 
not completely due imtil April 2011. However, the City has sent letters, beginning on June 
29, 2010, to the homeowner stating "This letter is to serve as official notification that within 
three (3) days fi-om the date of this letter that you must comply with program rules and 
regulations... if you continue to remain out of compliance with the rehabilitation rules your 
case -will be forwarded to the City's Legal Department for further action to require full 
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payment of the grant awarded to you..." As of October 29, 2010, it has not been turned over 
to the legal department. 

D. CDBG and HOME - Bids and Contractors 

Finding 
The City of Momoe's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing 
Rehabilitation Contractor's QuaHfications and Eligibility Standards manual provides that a 
contractor will not be awarded houses that will cause his/her inventory to exceed five ho-uses. 
However, minutes from the February 9, 2010 City Council meeting indicated approval of 6 
CDBG and 4 HOME bids to one contractor, and 7 CDBG and 2 HOME bids to another 
contractor, both in excess of the 5 home requirement. 

24 CFR 85.36 indicates that Grantees and subgrantees will ensure that all pre-qualified fists 
of persons, firms, or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and 
include enough quahfied sources to ensure maximmxi open and free competition. However, 
the prequalified List of contractors provided included only four contractors which is clearly 
insufficient to ensure maximum open and free competition in hght of the 20 contracts 
approved in the one City Cx>uncil meetmg above. 

We noted that there is no segregation of duties in that the same person in the CDBG offices 
sends out a bid package, then collects, reviews and makes a determination as to which bid to 
accept This indicates a weakness in controls in addition to being in violation of the City's 
procurement policy. 

Recommendation 
We recommend all bids be advertised and processed through the City of Monroe Purchasing 
Department and that local, state and federal regulations be followed with regards to the 
CDBG and HOME programs. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Commimity Development Division of Planning and Urban Development plans to follow the 
HUD guidelines stipulated in awarding Home contracts to certified Contractors. Only 
certified contractors according to HUD rules are allowed to participate in the bid process. 
The Department of Administration plans to rewrite the City's purchasing policy and 
incorporate HUD guidelines for HOME and CDBG contracts. The Purchasing IJepartment 
would then be responsible for the bid process, thereby resolving the issue of segregation of 
duties. 
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E. CDBG Citizen's Participation Plan 

Finding 
24 CFR, 91 requires the City of Monroe to have and actively implement a CDBG Citizen 
Participation Plan. The City of Monroe's Citizen's Participation Plan bylaws state that the 
Citizen Advisory Council shall meet at least once a month. The bylaws further indicate that 
missing a fourth meeting will result in the member being dismissed from the Citizen's 
Advisory Council. 

Minutes of Citizen Advisory Council meetings were reviewed and it was noted that meetings 
are not being held monthly. Meetings were cancelled m three of the twelve months reviewed 
and no minutes or cancellation notices were available for another four months. Fom of the 
members did not attend any of the meetings for which minutes were available. Management 
stated that meetings are held monthly but there is some difficulty with attendance of 
members. They further noted that if a member misses more than three meetings without a 
valid excuse (illness, work, out of town, etc.) a letter is sent to the coimcilman of the district 
thai member is representing and that these letters are kept on file. No such letters were in the 
files reviewed by auditors and the bylaws state nothing of excused absences but that any four 
absences will result in dismissal. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management ensure that all facets of the Citizen's Participation Plan are 
followed including conducting meetings monthly and taking appropriate action upon the 
absence of members. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Community Development Division plans to work with the CAC to adopt more stringent 
measm^ in their by-laws that will address un-excuse absences. Also recommend to the 
nominatmg Coimcil member to replace inactive members in recommendation to the Mayor. 
Community Development will adhere to the currentiy adopted poticies and procedures of the 
Citizen's Participation Plan. The recommendation of necessary revisions to the plan will be 
made to the Mayor, City Council, and Citizen's Advisory Council Members. 
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09-01 INTERNAL CONTROLS AT TAXATION AND REVENUE DIVISION 

Finding 
An intemal investigation uncovered probable cause to call in an investigation that ultimately led 
to the arrest of the Director of the Taxation and Revenue Division of the Administration 
Department for the City of Monroe. Arrested on May 28, 2009, the Director is currentiy 
mcarcerated at the Ouachita Correctional Center on $2.7 million bond facing 30 counts of felony 
theft and one count of state racketeering. A joint investigation by the Monroe PoHce 
Department, Louisiana State Police, FBI, Legislative Auditor's Office and the 4̂ ^ Judicial 
District Attorney's Office is currentiy in process and a report firom the Legislative Auditor's 
Office is expected to be released shortly. Initial estimates firom the investigation reflect 
$200,000 to $300,000 has been misappropriated over the current and previous year. 

Status 
Employees have now been and will continue to be trained on proper operating procedures and 
the consequences of failing to follow said procedures, ethical responsibilities of City employees, 
and steps to take when knowledge of policy and procedure violations exist. Sales tax collection 
processing software is being tweaked to provide greater control and management assistance. 
Outside legal assistance is assisting with the grossest delinquents. Policies and procedures are 
documented. 

09-02 INTERNAL CONTROLS AT THE CIVIC CENTER 

Finding-Design of Internal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the design of controls does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
errors or irregularities on a timely basis. At the Civic Center intemal controls are both written in 
the form of policies and procedures and unwritten where rules are passed on by word of mouth. 
Weaknesses found included: 

A. The City of Monroe requested that Momoe Pohce Department Investigative Division 
investigate possible illegal activity uivolviug numerous employees at the Monroe Civic 
Center. His investigation centered on a Concert and the Crawfest and while evidence was 
insufficient for filing charges, he did note disorganization in the management of the Concert 
indicatmg the presence of weak intemal controls. 

B. The segregation of duties appears to be limited -with respect to the accounting clerk who 
collects funds, prepares deposits, takes deposits to the bank and prepares the journal entries. 

C. Written controls allow for cash refund for tickets of cancelled events regardless of how the 
ticket was paid for while unwritten controls specify that refimds are to be made in the form 
originally paid. 

D. No provisions exist in the written policy for restrictions placed on access to the combination 
of the safe or its physical accessibility. There are also no specified reconciliation 
procedures to ensure that safe inventory is accurate. 
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Status 
Written intemal controls have been revised to mclude previously unwritten rules and provisions 
for: segregation of duties, reconciliations of tickets sold with deposits, timeliness of deposits, 
reconciliation of the safe, access restrictions to the safe and forms of payment permitted for 
refunds. 

Finding - Design of Internal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the design of controls dpes not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect 
errors or hxegularities. At both the Civic Center and the Taxation and Revenue Division intemal 
controls are both written in the form of policies and procedures and unwritten where rules are 
passed on by word of mouth, PoHcies and procedures over the sales tax revenue collected at the 
Civic Center is limited to the sale of novelty merchandise and only notes that the Civic Center is 
responsible for state and local sales tax collection and to the Taxation and Revenue Division with 
a hand-'written receipt being issued upon delivery. Weaknesses found included: 
A. Pohcies and procedures over the sales tax revenue collected at the Civic Center is limited to 

the sale of novelty merchandise and only notes that the Civic Center is responsible for state 
and local sales tax collection and deUvery to the Taxation and Revenue Division with a hand­
written receipt being issued upon delivery. 

B. Unwritten procedures dictate that the promoter collects the sales tax revenue from vendors 
too small to have previously applied for, a sales tax vendor number. Those revenues are then 
tumed in to die Civic Center'who, in turn, submits them to the Taxation and Revenue 
Division. This occurs when the event is complete regardless of how many days the event 
may last. 

C. Once the revenues axe submitted to the Taxation and Revenue Division, they are held until a 
monthly deposit is made and all of the revenues are lumped into one entry, regardless of 
which event/vendor they are associated with. 

Status 
Procedures at the Tax & Revenue Division have been rewrittem The sales tax collection 
software is in the process of being upgraded. A lock box system is in place for collecting taxes at 
Civic Center events involving multiple vendors, with the controls recommended as part of the 
process. Communication between the Civic Center and Tax & Revenue concerning such events 
is a part of the process. 

Finding - Operation of Intemal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the operation of controls does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to 
prevent or detect irregularities. Weaknesses in internal control operations at the Civic Center 
included: 

A. Written controls state that "all cash received during the day is deposited" in the bank. 
Review of receipts indicated that deposits were held on occasion for extensive periods of 

133 



CITY OF MONROE 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Summary Status of Prior Year Findings 

time. For example, one deposit tested comprised ten Ticketmaster payments whose check 
dates ranged from 12 to 166 days prior to deposit. 

B- Controls dictate that reconciliation of events must occur upon completion of event. We 
reviewed two events and evidence indicates that reconciliation did not occur in either case. 
In addition, monies collected are greater than the documentation supports in both events. 

C. Written controls on cash handling dictate that ticket sellers must balance their drawer, have it 
verified by either the box office manager or seller supervisor, then the Ticket Seller Sheet is 
completed and signed. The two events we reviewed either did not have Ticket Seller Sheets 
available or they were not completed in the manner dictated. In addition, almost half (five of 
eleven) of the drawers reviewed did not balance. 

Status 
Funds are now being deposited in a timely manner, events are being reconciled upon completion 
of the event, and audits are performed on events as determined necessary by Council or 
Community Affairs Director. Random audits are performed for all fimctions at the Civic Center 
including concessions and ticket sales. Random audits are performed on the safe and other cash 
on hand at the Civic Center. 

09-03 PARKS AND RECREATION DTVISION FEE SCHEDULE 

Finding 
Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution prohibits, among other things, tiie donation of 
pubhc funds. During the course of our audit, several instances of failure to collect fees indicated 
at Parks and Recreation Division locations came to our attention. We randomly tested 5 deposits 
that comprised a total of 48 indi-vidual program fund receipts tumed in from various locations, 

A. We found the fee schedule failed to attain approval by ordinance as required by Section 
2-11 A.(7) of the Charter for the City of Momoe adopted by the Monroe Charter 
Commission, August 1979: An act requiring an ordinance shall include but not be 
limited to those which: Regulate the rate or other charges for service by the City. 

B. The fee schedule for the recreation centers indicates that no fee is to be charged to those 
renting facihties for funeral purposes. As the City incurs costs to rent said facilities, not 
charging a fee sufficient to cover those costs would constitute a donation of pubUc funds. 
In our audit testwork, we found eight rentals for funeral purposes at five different 
locations none of which were charged a fee. Based upon normal rental rates per fee 
schedule, this equates to $525 in lost revenue in these eight instances. 

C; Policies and procedures dictate that tennis court usage fees for lessons be paid to the 
instmctor, however, deposits tested failed to indicate where the instructor paid said fees 
to the City and sign in sheets for said deposits showed no fee charged in 228 cases ($342 
in lost revenue). 

D. We also discovered an instance where a religious organization was not charged a fee for 
three rentals based on the classification of the tent revival as a "charitable evenf. The 
fee for such events is designated hy contract due to the large number of attendees 
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expected (1,450) but normal rental fees indicate that at least $262 in revenues would have 
been earned. 

E. Twelve additional cases ($2,028) of charging fees less than the fee schedule were 
discovered in the deposits reviewed. 

Status 
Fee schedule has been updated. Responsibilities to safeguard city property have been made 
known to employees. 

09-04 INTERNAL CONTROLS AT THE PARKS AND RECREATION DIVISION 

Finding — Design of Intemal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the design of controls does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
errors or irregularities on a timely basis. Intemal controls at the Division of Parks and 
Recreation are both written in the form of policies and procedures and unwritten where rules are 
passed on by word of mouth. On occasion, these two forms have been found to be contradictory. 
Weaknesses found during our audit include: 

A. The Division of Parks and Recreation has vaxious locations around the city most of which 
collect the fees for their facilities and programs. Per the written pohcies and procedures, 
these collections - are • then-forwarded to the same individual that'collects the shelter 
reservation fees for Chennault Park and Forsythe Park, prepares the deposit, takes the deposit 
to the bank and writes the journal entries indicating no segregation of duties for the handling 
of funds collected. However, verbal controls contradict tins by indicating that a different 
individual takes fhe deposits to the bank. 

B- Pre-numbered receipts are utilized by each program but there is no control in place to issue 
these receipt books or to ensure reconciliation of the receipt books with the bank deposits. 
One instance was found where a receipt was issued for an amount different than what 
documentation indicates was received. 

C. Written controls fail to indicate how often some of the programs are to turn their deposits ia 
to the central office while the unwritten policy mdicates that all deposits are to be turned in 
weekly by Wednesday. Our audit found that deposits are often held longer tban one week 
but it is indeterminable whether the monies are being held too long by the programs or the 
central office in these instances. Review of transactions summaries did indicate that the 
central office appears to be making weekly deposits. 

D. Types of payment permitted are noted in written controls for some programs but not for 
others. Unwritten policies indicate that there are forms of payment that axe unallowable, for 
example, personal checks are not to be accepted at any location and boxing is only permitted 
to accept money orders. 

E. Deposits received are refundable dependent upon the cleanliness of the facilities after the 
rental but are recorded as revenue rather than a Habihty. When refunded, the deposit is 
charged against revenues resulting in misstatements to fhe financial statements. 
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Status 
Written internal controls have been updated to include previously un'written rules and 
procedures, with controls being applied consistently at all locations. Written procedures also 
include deposit procedures, including the timeliness of deposits. 

Finding - Operation of Internal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the operation of controls does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of perforrmng their assigned flinctions, to 
prevent or detect irregularities. Weaknesses in operations of intemal controls found in the course 
of our audit include: 
A. Deposits appear to be held for lengthy periods of time before deposit. Review of five 

random receipts indicated that deposits were held up to 59 days before placement in bank. 
B. Event rentals .(29 of 70 reviewed) were found to have issues ranging fi-om over and 

undercharging, receipts not issued, receipt for amount different from payment, waiver of 
fees, payments with personal check, and changing amount of non-refundable deposit 
required. 

C- Three of seven summer youth applications reviewed were found incomplete with either no 
application provided, no copies of money order, or payment with personal check. 

D. Issues found •with four of the five sports enrollments included lack of documentation to 
justify charges and one occasion where cash was accepted which the employee then used to 
. purchase a money order which was tumed in for deposit 

E. The only boxhig deposit reviewed included payment with cash which unwritten pohcies 
stipulate is prohibited. The City of Monroe reflected boxing revenue of $400 in the current 
year and $460 in the prior year. However, fees required to participate in the program consist 
of a "$25.00 monthly fee for non-competitive training" and "a yearly $50.00 fee for 
registration with the USA Southern Boxing Association as a competitive boxer plus a $10.00 
monthly membership fee". 

Status 
Funds are now being deposited in a timely maimer and deposits are being audited on a regular 
basis for adherence to controls. 

09-05 INTERNAL CONTROLS AT PRE-TRIAL DIVERSION PROGRAM 

Finding - Design of Intemal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such that the design of controls does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing tiieir assigned fimctions, to prevent or detect 
errors or irregularities on a timely basis. In the case of the Pre-Trial Diversion Program written 
controls are minimal although there do appear to be un'written controls in place. Program 
overview, steps and payment methodology were available in written form but more complete 
controls are not available. 
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A. Provisions do not exist in the controls for reconciliation of the pre-numbered receipt books 
with the deposits. There are no controls in place for the issuance of receipt books by an 
independent party. 

B. Discrepancies appear to exist in the operation of the program in that the Director indicates 
that the Prosecutor sends individuals to the Pre-Trial Diversion program but when a list of 
those sent to the program was requested of the Prosecutor, we were told that the Prosecutor is 
not the one that sends individuals to the program. 

C. There is tittle segregation of duties in respect to the fact that the person that emolls 
individuals into the program is also the individual that collects and records the fees for 
program participation. 

Status 
Written procedures are now in place documentiog the procedures for collection of funds in the 
Pre-Trial Diversion Program. With proper controls in place, Legal management has decided it is 
not necessary to move the collections of the fiinds to another area of the city, as this may hinder 
participation in the program. 

Finding - Operation of Internal Controls 
Weaknesses in intemal controls exist such* that the operation of controls does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing then assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect irregularities. In the course of our audit, we found the following weaknesses in 
the operation of intemal controls "with respect-to the Pre-Trial Diversion Program:"" 
A. We interviewed the program director who hidicated that deposits were to be made weekly. 

In our review of 30 individuals who entered the program during the year, none of the funds 
received were deposited within one weeks time. Funds were held for as long as 23 days 
before deposit. 

B. The pre-numbered receipt books indicated 481 receipts were issued for the year whereas the 
Fee Summary Report accounted for the issuance of 497 receipts. 

C. There were inconsistencies in the amoimt of fees paid and time spent in the program for the 
same offense. 

D. Review of the individual files indicates that program requirements outlined in the program 
descriptions are not being implemented including: requirements to enter program, 
counseling, education, employment, and community service. 

Status 
Funds are now being deposited in a timely maimer, pre-numbered receipt books are also being 
reconciled with receipts on a regular basis, and the program is being operated in a manner 
consistent with the reqmrements and goals to ensure equal opportunity. Tlie City provides 
training for employees on proper operating procedures and the consequences of failing to follow 
said procedures, ethical xesponsibihties of City employees, and steps to take when knowledge of 
pohcy and procedures violations exists. 
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Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable 
to the Passenger Facility Charge Program and on 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Monroe (the City) with the compliance 
requhements described in the Yassenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, 
issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (Guide), for its passenger facihty charge 
program for the year ended April 30, 2010. Comphance with the requirement of laws and 
regulations applicable to its passenger facility charge program is the responsibility of the 
City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards; the standards apphcable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those 
standards and the Guide requhe that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facihty charge program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's comphance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We beheve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal detennination of the City's compliance with tbose 
requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, ui all material respects, with the reqmrements referred to 
above that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended April 30, 
2010. 

1100 North 18th Street f̂ ^onroe, Louisiana 71201 
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City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal 
control over compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to the 
passenger facility charge program. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on the passenger facility charge program in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
the intemal control compliance in accordance with the Guide. 

Our consideration of the intemal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all 
matters in the intemal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a 
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the hitemal control components 
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable laws and 
regulations that would be material in relation to the passenger facihty charge program being 
audited may occur and not be detected within a tunely period by employees in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the intemal 
contiol over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information and use of the City's management, and the Federal 
Aviation Administration and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

October 29, 2010 
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MANAGEMENT LETTER 

To the Honorable Mayor and City CouncO 
City of Monroe 
Monroe, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements of the City of Momoe (the 
City) for the year ended April 30, 2010, we considered its intemal control structure in order to 
determine our auditing procedures for purposes of expressing our opinion on the fmancial 
statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal control structure or overall compliance 
with laws and regulations. 

However, during our audit we became aware of certain matters that are opportunities for 
strengthening intemal controls and the overall environment for compliance with laws and 
regulations. This letter will simimarize our comments and suggestions regarding those 
matters. This letter does not affect our report dated October 29, 2010 on the financial 
statements of the City. 

PURCHASE ORDER PROCEDURES 

Materials and Supplies 

Finding 
As stated in the City's Administrative Purchasing Policies, purchase orders must be issued for 
all purchases of materials and supplies over $250. During our review of purchases made by 
the Louisiana Purchase Gardens and Zoo (the Zoo) for the year ended April 30, 2010, we 
reviewed 68 disbursements paid to two vendors for food. The following is a summary of 
issues we encountered during out test of disbursements: 

Ten transactions for dairy products, primarily, fell within the range of $22.50 - $79.80. Seven 
of the ten of these smaller purchases were made within minutes (often within seconds) 
following larger purchases which averaged $247.43. It appears that these transactions were 
broken down uito 2 separate purchases in an attempt to avoid issuing purchase orders, os 
combining the two transactions would have exceeded the $250 threshold and, therefore, 
would have required the issuance of purchase orders. 

Of 24 invoices examined for purchases of produce from a different vendor, 13 transactions 
exceeded the City's $250 threshold for issuing purchase orders, yet no purchase orders were 
issued. 

1100 North 18th Street Monroe, Louisiana 71201 
Tel: (318)387-2672 • Fax: (318)322-8866 • Website: www.afuilservicecpafirTn.com 
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Recommendation 
Due to the substantial number of transactions we reviewed which did not adhere to purchasing 
guidelines, we recommend that management of the City communicate the importance of 
following the City's purchasing policies. Additionally, we recommend that management review 
purchases on a periodic basis to ensure that purchase orders are being issued for all purchases of 
materials and supplies over $250. We further recommend that management communicate the 
importance of obtaining detailed invoices from vendors for all purchases of materials and 
supplies. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
The Department of Administration vnW communicate to all department's the importance of 
following the City's official purchasing policy. The City's Intemal Auditor will continue to 
review purchases for instances of non-compliance. Also, through the accounts payable process, 
purchases will be identified that are not in accordance with the policy. 

Confirming Purchase Orders and Timing of Purchase Orders 

Finding 
According to the City of Monroe's Administrative Purchasing Policies, confirming purchase 
orders are to be used for breakdowns and for items that must be expedited for just reasons only. 

During our test of purchase orders for the year ended April 30, 2010, we noted instances where 
confirming purchase orders may have been issued without just cause. Of a sample of 22 
purchase orders, we noted that 4 purchase orders, or approximately 18% of our sample, 
contained confirming purchase orders for items which did not appear to need expediting. 

The City's purchasing policies further states that "a purchase order is never to be issued after the 
fact". During a separate test of cash disbursements, we noted that 5 of 60 transactions tested 
purchase orders were dated subsequent to the invoice date. 

Effective intemal controls include adherence to soimd purchasing guidelines. When purchasing 
policies are consistently violated, intemal controls are deemed ineffective. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that City management communicate the importance of issuing purchase orders 
in a tunely manner, as well as the importance of using discretion before issuing confirming 
purchase orders. Additionally, we recommend periodic review of transactions to ensure that 
purchase orders and confirming purchase orders are being issued in accordance with policies set 
forth by the City's purchasing polices. 
We also recommend that the City review its Administrative Purchasing Policies and update as 
deemed necessary in order to clarify ambiguous procedures and conform to the Intranet User 
Guide issued in 2007 in connection with the City's paperless initiative. 
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Management's Corrective Action Plan 
The Department of Administration will review and update the City's Purchasing Policy to 
integrate the paperless initiatives into the policy and to clarify ambiguous procedures. 

The Department of Administration will communicate to all department's die importance of 
following the City's official purchasing policy. The City's Intemal Auditor will continue to 
review purchases for uistances of non-compliance. Also, through the accounts payable process, 
purchases will be identified that are not in accordance with the policy. 

AVAILABILITY OF CDBG DOCUMENTATION 

Finding 
Repeated requests for documentation from the CDBG office by the auditors were filled with 
documentation that was often outdated or mcomplete. Three of the subrecipient aimual audit 
reports initially submitted to the auditors were for the 2007 audit year instead of the 2009 audit 
year. One report was never provided although requested repeatedly. It was later determined that 
no audit was completed for the subrecipient for the year in question. Limited information was 
available during our initial review of the file of a CDBG construction project. However, during a 
later review of the same file, we noted it contained many documents initially missing firom the 
file. On September 22, 2010 we requested documentation of a Release of Funds. This request 
was not responded to imtil October 4,2010 and the requested information was never provided. 

Having to repeatedly request the same information not only demonstrates an organizational 
weakness in controls of the various CDBG programs, but also results in an inordmate amount of 
time and expense for both the City and auditor in completing the audit. 

Recommendation 
We recommend management provide complete accurate documentation to auditors in a timely 
manner. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Community Development plans to provide all documents m a timely manner. Community 
Development plans to create backup files in a machine readable format by scanning all fdes. The 
Division has already submitted a request to the MIS Department for then assistance in providing 
this function. This will allow all files to be centralized and secured from events such as fires or 
water damage. 

PAYROLL FRAUD 

Finding 
During the year ended April 30, 2010, the Sewer Manager was notified by an anonymous 
informant that payroll fraud may have been occurring within the Sewer Division. The Sewer 
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Manager initiated an investigation of the accusations. By correlating video surveillance of the 
time clock area with time card records m addition to time stamps on telephone service calls, the 
Manager was able to identify seven independent cases of payroll fi'aud during a one month 
period actively involving four employees. These instances include employees clocking m/out for 
other employees not on the premises and employees leaving the premises in personal vehicles 
while clocked in. A police report was filed and four of the five employees were arrested. Four 
of the arrested employees involved were terminated fiom city employment. One of the four had 
been terminated previously for reasons imrelated to this incident. After the police investigation, 
the fifth employee was exonerated. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Sewer Manager continue to aggressively deal with any violations he 
encounters. All employees should be reminded of the consequences they will face if they violate 
any laws, regulations or City policies. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Sewer management will continue to review surveillance recordhigs for incidents of payroll fi"aud. 
The City is in the process of implementing a biometric time clock system which will provide 
further controls over timekeeping procedures. The City will continue its practice of uivestigating 
reports of payroll fraud and take appropriate actions when necessary. 

THEFT OF CASH 

Finding 
During the year ended April 30, 2010, a theft of approximately $2,200 was discovered in the 
accounthig department. The individual responsible for this theft was arrested and terminated. 
Subsequentiy $1,000 was recovered from the employee. 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Accoimting Director continue to aggressively deal with any violations 
she encounters. All employees should be reminded of the consequences they will face if they 
violate any laws, regulations or City policies. 

Management's Corrective Action Plan 
Cashier will issue a computer-generated receipt at the time money is received. The Director of 
Accounting will ensure that deposits are made timely. The City wiU conthxue its practice of 
investigating, reporting, and when necessary terminating employees suspected of theft. 

(A Professional Accounting Corporation) 

October 29,2010 


